INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of VE Commercial Vehicles Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of VE Commercial
Vehicles Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) specified under section 133 of the Act., read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone Ind AS financial statements,



Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

The Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017, included in these
standalone Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed
an unmodified opinion on those statements on May 3, 2017.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
Annexure 1 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

{e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2018, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule I1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 38 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;



ii. The Company did not any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses- Refer Note 50 o the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company,

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Sanjay Vij

Partner

Membership Number; 095169
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 8§, 2018
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: VE Commercial Vehicles Limited (‘the Company”)

(i) a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of the Property, plant and equipment.

b. All fixed assets were physically verified by the management in the previous year in accordance
with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢. According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company except the following:-

Particulars of the land and Carrying value as at Remarks
building March 31, 2018
(Rs. In million)
Freehold land and building located at 62.8 Pending registration
Ahmedabad, Bhiwandi and Gurgaon, in the name of the
admeasuring 1,743.08 square meters, Company
21,695 square meters and 28,112
square meters, respectively

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification. Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at March 31, 2018
and no material discrepancies were noticed in respect of such confirmations.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of certain products, and are of the opinion that
prima facic, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not,
however, made a detailed examination of the same.
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(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax,
sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and services tax,
service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory
dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax,
excise duty, value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Act, 1961

upto commissioner’s
level

Name of the Forum where Amount Amount paid | Period to which the
statute dispute is pending [(Rs. In million)*| under protest amount relates
(Rs in million)
Central Appellate  Authority 1.3 - | 1991-92 to 1997-98
Excise Act upto commissioner’s
level
Central CESTAT 143.6 §3.6 | 2000-01 to 2015-16
Excise Act
Sales  Tax | Appellate Authority 1,753.5 176.4 | 1995-96, 2004-05 to
Act upto commissioner’s 2014-15,2016,17
level
Sales  Tax | Appeliate Tribunal 99.8 24.1 | 1991-92 10 1994-95,
Act 1998-99 to 2000-01,
2002-03, 2011-2012,
2013-14,
Sales  Tax | High Court 60.1 3.0 | 1995-96, 2000-01,
Act 2005-06, 2008-09
and 2009-10
Finance Act, | Addition on account 0.9 - | 2009-11
1994 of TPO under section
92CA3)
Finance Act, | CESTAT 485.3 16.7 | 2003-07 to 2007-08,
1994 2009-10, 2011-12
Income Tax | Appellate Authority 0.5 - | 2011-12

* Amount as per demand orders including interest and penalty wherever indicated in the order.,

(viii)

In our opinion and according to the information given by the management, the Company has

not defaulted in repayment of loans/ borrowings to banks. The Company has not taken any
loans/ borrowings from financial institution or government and has not issued any debentures
during the year.

(ix)

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not

raised any money way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments and term
loans, hence, reporting under clause (ix} is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon,




(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or no material fraud on the company by
the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii)
of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence,
reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and, not
commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 43-IA of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Sanjay Vj

Partner

Membership Number: 095169
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 3, 2018



ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VE Commercial Vehicles
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilitics include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companics Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

ﬂ/



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Sanjay Vij

Partner

Membership Number: 095169
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 8, 2018
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VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 11, 2018

Rs. in million
0 As at As at
Piririlan Diste March 31,2008 March 31,2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 5 16,316.7 15,5423
(b) Capital work-in-progress 6 964.5 1,759.1
(¢} Intangible assets 7 5,208.3 4,304.5
(d) Intangible assets under development 8 2,872 19125
(¢} Financial assets
(i) Investments g 119.8 B9.8
(ii} Trade receivables 10 19.7 89.0
(iii) Loans 11 21.7 19.1
(iv) Other financial assets 12 343.7 3378
(f) Other assets 13 2,032.7 1,658.2
Total non-current assets 27.414.3 25,712.3
Current assets
(a} Inventories 14 9,261.5 6,463.9
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 14,138.1 10,4359
(ii] Cash and cash equivalents 15 34271 3.089.2
(iii} Bank balances other than {ii} above 16 12.655.1 74732
(iv) Loans 11 15.2 569
(v) Other financial assets 12 1.904.1 1,2447
(c) Other assets 13 1.681.6 28124
Total current assets 43,0827 31,576.2
Total assets T0497.0 57.288.5
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 17 100.0 100.0
(b) Other equity 18 323758 28.798.5
Total equity 324758 28,898.5
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Other financial liabilities 19 64,2 97.5
(b) Provisions 20 1,608.1 1,246.2
(¢) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 21 4564 119.0
(d) Other liabilities 22 3347 3755
Total non-current liabilitles 2,463.4 1,838.2
Current liabilities
(a} Financial lisbilities
(i) Borrowings 23 2,565.0 2,0400
(i) Trade payables 24 26,624.2 19,408.0
(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 2,682.2 22122
{b) Provisions 20 910.1 858.5
{c) Income tax liabilities (net) 25 190.3 106 8
{d} Other liahilitics 22 2,586.0 1.926.3
Total current liabilities 35,557.8 26,551.8
Total liabilifies 38.021.2 28,390.0
Total equity and liabilities 70.497.0 57,2885
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1to 52
In terms of our report attached
For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration No.: 30 1003E/E300005
Per Sanjay Vij Praveen Jain Anders Hager
Parmer Company Secretary Chief financial Officer
Membership no.: 95169 M No, 3524
Vinod Aggarwal Hakan Karlsson Siddhartha Lal
Managing Director and Chairman Drirector
Chief Executive Officer

Place : Gurugram
Date :
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VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

@

Rs. in million

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particalin Nete March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Income

Revenue from operations 26 102,066.5 92,054.5
Other Income 27 826.3 570.9
Total Income 102,892.8 92,6254
Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 28 63,284.5 48.316.1
Purchases of stock-in-trade 29 13,092.8 15,0273
Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 30 (1,211.4) 5534
Excise duty on sale of goods 1,739.8 70025
Employee benefits expenses 31 6,839.4 62259
Finance costs 32 161.0 178.4
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 33 3,222.1 2,7270
Other expenses 34 9,244.4 8,078.6
Total expenses 96,372.6 88,199.2
Profit before tax 6,520.2 44262
Tax expense
Current tax 35 1,513.1 963.8
Tax adjustment relating to earlier years (73.6) -
Deferred tax charge/(benefit) 35 345.2 {11.4)
Total tax expense 1,784.7 952.4
Profit for the year 4,735.5 34738
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:-
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (22.6) (53.1)
Income tax benefit 35 738 18.4
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss (14.8} 341
Total Comprehensive income for the year, oet of tax 4,720.7 3.439.1
Earnings per share {of Rs.1¢ each} in Rs.

Basic/ diluted 473,55 347.38
See accompanaying notes forming part of the financial statements 1o 52
In terms of our report attached For and on hehalf of Board of Divectors
For S.R.Batlibei & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005
Per Sanjay Vij Praveen Jain Anders Hager
Partner Company Secretary Chief financial Officer
Membership no.: 95169 M No. 3524

Place : Gurugram
Date :
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Vinod Aggarwal
Maeanaging Director and
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 00038906

Hakan Karlssen
Chairman

DIN: 05195444

Siddhartha Lal
Director

DIN: 00037645



VE COMMERCIAL YEHICLES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

A. Equity share capifal

Balance as at March 31, 2016

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at April 1, 2017

Changes in ¢quity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2018

Rs. in miflion

Number of Shares Amount
10,000,000 100.0
10,000,000 100.0
10,000,000 100.0

Rs. in million

Reserves and surplus

Particulars . General Retained Total
Share premium a
reserve earnings
Balance as at March 31,2017 10.786.6 2.598.5 154134 28.798.5
Profit for the year - - 4,735.5 4,735.5
Other comprehensive income - - (14.8) (14.8)
Dividends paid - - (950.0) (950.0%
Tax on dividend = - (193.4) (193.4)
Balance as at March 31, 2018 10,786.6 2,598.5 18,990.7 32,3758

Rs. in million

Reserves and surplus

Particulars . General Retained Total
Share premium .
reserve earnings

Balance as at March 31, 2016 10.786.6 2,598.5 11,974.3 253594
Profit for the year - - 34738 34738
Other comprehensive income - - (34.7) (34.7)
Dividends paid - - - -
Tax on dividend - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2017 10.786.6 2.598.5 15,4134 28,798.5

Sec accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For S.R.Badiboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005

Per Sanjay Vij
Partner
Membership no.: 95169

Place : Gurugram
Date :
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Praveen Jain Anders Hager

Company Secretary Chief financial Officer

M No. 3524

Vinod Aggarwal Hakan Karlsson Siddhartha Lal
Managing Director and Chairman Director

Chief Executive Officer

DIN: 00038906 DIN: 65195444 DIN: 00037645




VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

(W)

LS

Rs_in mulhon

Particulars For the year ended For the year coded
March 31,2018 March 31. 2017
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit after tax 4,355 34738
Adjustments for:
Current tax 15131 963.4
Tex adjustment relating to earlier years {73.6) -
Deferred tax charge/ (benefils) 3452 (11.4)
Depreciaticn and amortisation expenses 32221 2,71270
Profit on sale of property, plant and equinment - (4.0)
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets discarded 66.4 126
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 260 198
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (22,6} {53.1)
Inlerest income {691.7} (444.0)
Excess provision on invesiment in subsidiary company writlen back - (43.1)
Finance cosis 16t 0 176.4
Operating profit hefore changes in working capital 9.2681.4 6,8399
Ch in working capital:
Non-cwrrent
Trade receivables 9.3 207.00
Loans {2.6) 3.1
Other financial assets {9.3) {26.4)
Other assets {192.3) (485 9)
Current
Inventories (2,797.6} 3687
Trade receivables (3,702,2} (2,444.2)
Loans 41,7 {30.9)
Other financial assels (506.4) (762.3)
Other assets 1.130.8 7824
Adijustments for increase / (decrease) in linhilities:
Non-current
Cther financial liabilities {0.3) 24
Provisions 361.9 3018
Orther fiabilities (40.8) 3520
Current
Trade payables T.216.2 16216
Provisions L6 2985
Orher financial liabilities 553.5 8387
Cther liabilities 659.7 3717
Cash generated from operntiog activities 12,114.6 82347
Income taxes paid {1.356.1) (939.8)
Net cash flow from operating activities {4) 10,7585 7,2950
B.CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchpse of fixed assets (including capital advances) {5.039.9) {4,051.7)
Sale of fixed assets 68.5 609
Investment in fixed deposits {5,178.5) {1.071.6)
Investment in equity shares of subsidiary companies {30.9) (150.0)
Interest received 538.7 3724
Ned cash Mow from investing activities (B) {96412 (10,856.0)
C.CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in short term borrowings (net) 52590 1,6599
Interest paid 161.0) (178.4)
Dividend paid {950.0) =
Tax on dividend 193.4) -
Net cash Bow from financing activities (C) 719.4) 14915
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (AYH(BIHC } 3379 {2,069.5)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 3,089,2 51587
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 3.427.1 30892
Rs. in million
Particulars Asat As at
Macch 31, 2418 March 31, 2017
Compenenis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1.1 1.1
Cheques/ drafis on hand 3467 1871
Balances with banks:
In current accounts 4293 168.8
Tn deposit accounts 26500 27322
Total cash and cash equivalents {refer naote no. 15) 3.427.1 30892

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial siztements

In terns of our report attached

For S.R.Batliboi & Co, LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Neo.: 301003E/E300005

Per Sanjay Vij
Partner
Membership no : 95162

Place : Gurugram
Date:
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For and on behalf of Board of Direciors

Praveen Jain Anders Hager

Company Secretary Chief financial Officer

M No. 3524

Vinod Aggarwal Hakan Kasisson Siddhartha Lal
Managing Director ; Chairman Director

Chief Executive Officer

DIN: 00038906 DIN: 05195444 DIN: 00037645
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2.2
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3.1

VE Commercial Vehicles Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

General Information

VE Commercial Vehicles Limited (“the Company™} is a public company domiciled & incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of motorised
Commercial Vehicles, spare parts and related services. The Company is a leading commercial vehicles
manufacturer and has a dominant presence in the domestic market.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorize for issue on May 8, 2018.

Basis of preparation and presentation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind ASs notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets
and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months
for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, Revenue is reduced for rebates
and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when titles have passed and all the following conditions are
satistied:

« the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

= the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold,;

» the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

« it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and

» the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract. Servicing fees included in the price of products sold are recognised by reference to the proportion of
the total cost of providing the servicing for the product sold

N
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Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on, time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition,

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as a lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Company’s
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding is respect of the leases.

The Company as a Lessee

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight line basis over the term of relevant
lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase, such increases are recognised in the year in which such
benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the company's
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise-

Foreign currency derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedging
relationship and the nature of the hedged item.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the' acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Government grants

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the
Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received.

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis in profit or loss
over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate.
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Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts
over the expected useful life of the related asset and presented within other income.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit

Payments (o defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period
in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

» service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses or curtailments and
settlements);

= net interest expense or income; and
* re-measurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item
‘Employee benefits expense’,

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or swiplus in the
Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of
any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the
plans.

Short-term and other long-term emplovee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, in the peried the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the bencfits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits such as annual leave and sick leave are
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expecied to be made by the Company in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Taxation
Tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years. Subject to exceptions below, deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all
deductible temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, on carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax loss;
deferred income tax is not recognised on the initial recognition (including MAT) of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profil nor taxable profit or loss; and deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely
than not that they will be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or equity).

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at each reporting date
and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (including furniture, fixtures, vehicles, etc.) held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost of acquisition is inclusive of freight, duties,
taxes and other incidental expenses. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes items directly atiributable to the construction or acquisition of the
item of property, plant and equipment, and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Company's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as-
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under
construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in ¢stimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis at the straight lin¢ method over estimated economic useful lives of
its fixed assets generally in accordance with that provided in the Schedule II to the Act except in respect of
moulds and dies depreciated over the useful life of 1 to 15 years, wherein, the life of the said assets has been
assessed based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset,
the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes,
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Q/
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Internally-generated intangible assets - research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if; all of the following have been demonstrated:

» the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset So that it will be available for use or sale
« the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

» the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

» how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

+ the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

+ the ability te measure reliably the expenditure atiributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no intemally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intermally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Intangible assets comprising of product design, prototypes, etc., either acquired or internally developed are
amortised over a period of ten years, the estimated minimum useful life of the related products. Cost of software
is amortised over a period of 5 years or less depending on the estimated useful life of asset.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in vse.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash- generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
moving weighted average. Finished goods and work-in-progress include appropriate proportion of overheads
and where applicable, excise duty. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Warranties

The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded when products are sold. These estimates are
established using historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims and
management estimates regarding possible future incidence based on corrective actions on product failures. The
timing of outfiows will vary as and when warranty claim will arise.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost (except for
debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or Joss on initial recognition):

« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows: and

+ the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.

i
—

e

4



3.14.2

3.14.3

3.144

VE Commercial Vehicles Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition):

« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

+ the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments.
For the impairment policy on debt instruments at FVTOCI, refer 3.14.4
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income" line
item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity
instruments which are not held for trading,

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL. In
addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at
FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other income' line
item, Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the company's right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets
measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive
cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increase significantly since initial recognition,
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Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company
has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed
based on historical credit loss experience and adjustments for forward looking information,

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as' equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carying amounts of financial liabilities that are
subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense
that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' Line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ind AS 115 was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer,

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. This new
standard requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in
amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Adoption of the new rules could affect the timing of revenue recognition for certain transactions of
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the Company. Ind AS 115 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2019 using either one of two
methods: (i) retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, with the option to elect certain practical expedients as
defined within Ind AS 115 (the full retrospective method); or (ii) retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initially applying Ind AS 115 recognized at the date of initial application (1 April 2018) and providing certain
additional disclosures as defined in Ind AS 115 (the modified retrospective method).

The Company continues to evaluate the available transition methods and its contractual arrangements. The
ultimate impact on revenue resulting from the application of Ind AS 115 will be subject to assessments that are
dependent on many variables, including, but not limited to, the terms of the contractual arrangements and the
mix of business. The Company's considerations also include, but are not limited to, the comparability of its
financial statements and the comparability within its industry from application of the new standard to its
contractual arrangements. The Company has established an implementation team to implement Ind AS 115
related to the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers and it continues to evaluate the changes to
accounting system and processes, and additional disclosure requirements that may be necessary.

Upon adoption the Company does not expect a material change in the manner in which revenue arrangements
are recognized from the current practice. Based on the management’s assessment, the quantitative impact of Ind
AS 115 on the financial statements is not material to the Company.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the management of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements that the management has made in
the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:-

Recoverability of intangible assets and intangible assets under development

During the year, the Company assessed the recoverability of the intangible assets and intangible assets under
development.

Capitalisation of cost in intangible assets and intangible assets under development is based on management’s
judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed and asset under development will generate
economic benefits in future. This situation is closely monitored, and adjustments made in future periods if future
market activity indicates that such adjustments are appropriate.

Recoverability of deferred tax assets including Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit

The Company has accumulated MAT Credit deferred tax asset which has arisen due to difference between
taxable profits and profits under section 115JB of the Income tax Act, 1961 which can be utilised up to 15 years
from the year in which it arose. The management of the Company has done the analysis of future profit
projections and is confident that the future taxable income will be sufficient to utilise the MAT Credit
recognised in these financial statements.
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Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
Jong-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.

Provision and contingent liability

On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies. For
contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial
statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as Contingent
liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the
financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and
amounts are received or receivable.

Useful lives of tangible and intangible assets

Management reviews the useful lives of its tangible and intangible assets at each reporting. As at March 31,
2018 management assessed that the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the Company.
Further, there is no significant change in the useful lives as compared to previous year.
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VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9.  [Investments
Rs. in million
Asnt Asat
Particalnre March 31,2018 Maxch 31,2017
Investment In equity Instruments 119.8 898
119.8 898
Non-current :
Unguoted investment (al cost) in equity shares of:
Subsldlary companiea .
1,26,81,697 (previous year 1,26,81 657) equity shares of 10 LKR each of VE C 543 543
% Lanka (Private) Limited, Sri Lanka
180 (previous year 100} squity shares of VECV South Africa (Pty) Limited (no 65.0 35.0
face value)
1193 293
Joint venture company®
25,000 (previous year 25,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up of -
Eicher Company Foundation {Licenice under Section 8(1) of the Companies
Act, 201938
Unquoted Investment (a¢ FVTPL) In s
Others .
50,000 (previous year 50,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up of
Pithampur Auto Cluster Ltd. 0.5 0.5
119.8 E9.8
*Cost of investment is stated st Rs Nil as the same cermot be distributed to the
members in the event of liquidation, actunl cost of investment of Rs. 250,060
has been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the carlier year.
Asat Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Aggrepate book velus of quoted investments - -
Agaregete carrying velue of unguoted investments {net of impairment, if any ) 1193 893
Category wise other investinente- as per IND AS 109 Classiflcationd
Asat As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Financlal asscts carcied at falr value throuph profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investment in Pithampur Auto Cluster 1.6d. 0.S 05

# These i ludos i in subsidiaries and joint

million}

10, Trade recelvables

curied at cost smounting to Rs, 115.3 million {March 31, 2017 Rs. §9.3

Rs in million

Asat Asat
Fardealars March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Non-current
Unsecursd - considered good 19.7 89.0
‘Total 19.7 85.0
Current
Secured, considered good 30,68 1.5
Unsecured - considered good 14,1073 10,404 .4
- considered doubtful 165,9 131.4
14,304.0 10,5573
Less: impainment for doubtful trade receivables 165.9 1314
Total 14,138.1 10,4359
Apc of receivables @
Asat Asat
SRRUCEAT Murch 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Within the credit period 103421 8,731.0
1 - 30 days past due 22503 1,019.6
31- 180 days past due 13933 672.5
More than 189 days past due 335.0 2332
14:323.7 10,656.3

%




VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

12.

\S

Loans
Rs.in million
Parlicul Asat As at
LT March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Non - current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans o employess 217 19.0
Total 21.7 19.1
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans 1o employees 152 569
*Total 15.2 56.9
Note :- These financial asscts are carried at amortised cost.,
Other financlal assets
Ra in million
Particulars Asat Asat
e March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Non - current
Unsecured, considered good
Fixed deposits* 200.1 2035
Seourity deposit 143.6 1343
Total 343.7 3378
* Represents fixed deposits pledged with banks against bank guarantees
Current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Securily deposit
Corsiderad pood 376 306
Considered doubtful 7.5 7.5
45.1 381
Less: impairment for doubtful security deposits 75 TS
376 306
Tnterest accrued on deposits 2968 1438
Industrial promotion subsidy roczivable 12982 8152
Other racsivables
Considered good 2715 2551
Considered doubtfis] 39 39
2754 259.0
Less: impairment for doubtful other receivables 39 39
2718 2551
Total - 1904.1 12447

Nate - These financiel assets are carried at amortised cost.

YV
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VE OOMMERCIAL YEHICLES LAMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13

14

15

16

(rther assets
Rs in million
Particul Asat As at
Arjcyars March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Non - current
Unsecured, considered good unless atherwise stated
Capital advances 501.5 3193
Balance with government authorities
Considered good 353.8 3373
Considered doubtful 5.0 82,1
358.8 4194
Less; impairment for doubtful advances 5.0 82,1
3538 3373
Prepayment land leases 11368 963.2
Prepayrnent security depesits and other lcans 40.6 384
‘Total 2032.7 1658.2
Current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advance to supplier 708.8 7259
Prepaid expense 8.7 540
Balance with givernment authorities
Considered good 8792 20038
Considered deubtful 2.0 20
8812 2,0058
Less: impairment for doubtful advances 2.0 20
8792 2,003 8
Advances to employees 8.8 43
Prepayment land leases 16,1 150
Prepayment sccurity deposits and other loans 10.0 95
Total 1,681.6 28124
Inventory
Rs_in million
. As at Asat
ESHISh March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Raw materials and components 3,005.7 1,4563
(includes goods in transit of Rs. 4808 millions (Mareh 31, 2017 Rs 1765
millicns)
Work in progress 493.1 4297
Finished goods 3,7392 2981.¢
{includes goods in transit of Rs. 86.0 millions (Merch 31,2017 Rs 105.3
millions)}
Stock in trade 1,612,585 1,2227
(includes goods in transit of Rs. 17.8 millions (March 31, 2017 Rs 375 millions)
Stores and spares 2833 2608
Loose tools 1277 113.4
Total 9,261.5 6.463 9

The cost of Inventory recognised as an expenses during the year was Rs 74,834 9 million (previous year Rs, 70,090 3 million)

The cast of Inventories recognised as an expenses includes Rs. 114.4 million (previous year Rs. 220.6 million) in respect of write down of inventory to

net realisable value, and has been reduced by Rs. 8 0 million (previous year Rs 51.2 millions) in respect of reversal of such write downs.

Inventory of Rs. 286 6 million {March 31, 2017 Rs 403.1 million) are expected to be recovered after more than 12 months.

The Mode of valuation of inveniories has been stated in note 3.1

Cash and cash equivalents

Rs. in million

Particulars sl Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Cash on hand 1.1 11
Cheques, drafts on hand 346.7 1871
Balances with banks
In cwirent accounts 4293 168 8
In deposit accounts 2,650.0 2,732.2
Total 3,427.1 3,0852
Other bank balance
Asat As at

Particulars

Muarch 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Balances with banks
In deposit accounts

.

12,655.1

74732

12,655.1

7,473.2




VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 Equity share capital

Rs. in millions

Particul As at . As at
s March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

Authorised

10,000,000 (previous year 10,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 100.0 100.0

Total 100.0 100.0

Issued, subscribed and paid up

10,000,000 {previous year 10,000,000} equity shares of Rs. 10 each 100.0 100.0

Total 100.0 100.0

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs, 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation,
the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company afier distribution of all preferential amount, in preportion to their shareholding.

U]

Particulars No. of Shares Amm}n?

(Rs, in million)
Balance at April 1, 2016 10,000,000 100.0
Movement during the year - —
Balance at March 31, 2017 10,000,600 1000
Movement during the year - -
Balance at March 31, 2018 10,000,600 100.0

(ii) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% cquity shares in the €

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Particulars Nos. % holding in the Nos. % holding in the
class class
Eicher Motors Limited 5,440,000 34.40% 5,440,000 54.40%
Aktiebolaget Volvo (PUBL), Volvo, Sweden 3,469,700 34.70% 3,469,700 4.70%
Volvo Truck Corporation, Sweden (100% subsidiary of Aktiebolaget Volvo o N
(PUBL), Volvo, Sweden) 1,090,300 10.90% 1,090,300 10.90%

Note:- Eicher Motors Limited and Aktiebolaget Volvo (PUBL), Volvo {including group companies) are co-venturers in the Company.

Vg




VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(b

(c)

(a)

(b}

(c)

19

(ther equity
(Rs in million)
As at Asat
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Share premium account 10,786.6 10,786.6
General reserve 2,598.5 2,5985
Retained eamings 18,990.7 154134
32,3758 28,798.5
(Rs in million)
Particulars As at For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Share premium account
Opening balance 10,786.6 10,786.6
Add/ (less): movement during the year - -
Closing balance 10,786.6 10,786.6

Share premium account represent the premium received on issue of share capital of the company . The Company can utilised the same for the purpose of buy back of share or
issue of bonus shares as decided by the Management.

General reserve

Opening balance 21,598.5 25985
Add: Transferred from Statement of profit and loss - -
Closing balance 2,598.5 2,598.5

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one
component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

Retained earnings
Opening balance 15,413.4 11,974.3
Add: Profit for the year 4,735.5 34738
Add: Other comprehensive income:

from remeasurement of defined benefit obligation net of income tax (14.8) (34.7)
Less: Final dividend (amount per share Rs. 95 (previous year Rs. Nil)) 950.0 -
Less: Tax on dividend 193.4 e
Closing balance 18,990.7 15,4134
In respect of the year ended March 31, 2018, the directors proposed that a dividend of Rs. ......... per share be paid on fully paid equity shares. This equityf dividend is subject

to approval by shareholders at the annual general meeting and has not been included as a liability in these financial statements. The proposed equity dividend is payable to all
holders of fully paid equity shares. The total estimated equity dividend to be paid is Rs. ...... Millions,

Other financial liabilities
Rs. in million

Particulars At Gataat
March 31, 2018 March 31. 2017
Non- Current
Capital creditors - 330
Security deposits ; 64.2 645
Total 64.2 97.5
Current
Capital creditors 3848 4683
Book overdraft 1498.8 9288
Employees dues 798.6 8151
Total 2682.2 2,2122

\Ve



VYE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20

21

r oWl

-—D

Provisions
Rs_in million

. Asat Asat
Hacticulars March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Non-current
Employees benefits (i)
Compensated absefices 4383 377.9
Other employee benefits 3381 273.9
Other provisions : Warranties (i) 831.7 594.4
Total 1608.1 1,246.2
Current
Employees benefits {i)
Compensated absences 229 20.5
COther employee benefits 4.3 59
Other provisions ; Warranties (i} £82.9 8321
Total 910.1 858.5

(i) The provision for employee benefits includes eamed leave, sick leave, vested long service reward and other long-term incentives, The increase in the carrying amount of the

provision for the current year results from in¢rease in the number of employees, period of service and salary cost,

(i1) Movement in warranties provision Rs. in million

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31,2017

Opening balance 1,426.5 1,030.4

Additional provisions recognised 9196 976.2

Amount utilised during the year (681.8) (623.7)

Unwinding of discount 50.3 43.6
Closing balance 1,714.6 14265

The provision for warranty claims represents the present value of the management's best estimate of the future economic benefits that will be required under the Company's
obligations for warranties under local sale of goods legislation. The estimate has been made on the basis of historical warranty trends and may vary as a result of new matenals,

altered manufacturing processes or other events affecting product quality.

Deferred tax liabilities {net}
Rs. in million
) Asat As at
Earticaliss March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Deferred tax liabilities on
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 4,001.2 3,516.0
Others 62.0 4R.3
40632 3.564.3
Less: Deferred tax assets on
MAT credit entitlement 3,160.9 3,098.1
Accrued expenses deductible on payment 53.5 59.2
Provision for leave encashment/compensated absences 136.2 114.5
Provision for doubtful debis and advances 62.F 50.1
Others 194.1 1234
3.606.8 34453
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 456.4 119.0

N




YE COMMERCIAL YEHICLES LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21.

23.

Movement in Deferred tax liabilities

For the year ended March 31, 2018

Rs. in million

Particulars

Opening balance

Recognised in profit and
loss

Recognised in Other
comprehensive income

Closing balance

Deferred tax liabilities on

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 3,516.0 4852 - 4,001.2
Others 48.3 13.7 - 62.0
3,564.2 498.9 - 40632
Less: Deferred tax assets on
MAT credit entitlement 3,008.1 62,8 - 3,160.9
Accrued expenses deductible on payment 59.2 (5.7 53.5
Provision for leave encashment/compensated absences 114.5 21.7 - 136.2
Remeasurement of defined benefit abligation . (7.8) 7.8 .
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 50,1 12.0 - 62.1
Others 123.4 70.7 - 1941
34453 153.7 7.8 3,606.8
Deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities (net) 119.0 345.2 {7.8) 456.4
For the year ended March 31, 2017 Rs. in miltion
Particulars Opening balance S L LT Recogmsed' T Closing balance
loss comprehensive income
Deferred tax liabilities on
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 34593 56.7 3,516.0
Others 31.7 16.6 - 4813
3,491.0 73.3 - 3,564.3
Less: Deferred tax assets on
MAT credit entitlement 29889 109.2 o 3,098.1
Business losses and unabsorbed depreciation carried forward 67.1 (67.1) - o
Accrued expenses deductible an payment 84.6 (25.6) - 59.2
Provision for leave encashment/compensated absences 933 2i2 1145
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - (18.4) 184 o
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 53.2 (2.9} - 50.1
Others 55.1 68.3 - 123.4
33422 84.7 184 34453
Deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities (net) 148.8 (11.4) (18.4) 119.0
Other liabilities
Rs. in million
S As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Non- Current
Advances from customers 142 1232
Deferred revenue 320.6 2523
Total 3347 375.5
Current
Advances from customers 1958.4 1,245.3
Statutory dues 592.9 646,7
Deferred revenue 34.7 34.3
Total 2586.0 1926.3
Borrowings
Rs. in million
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Secured- at amortised cost
Loan repayable on demand from banks
Short term loan (i)
Unsecured- at amortised cost
Loan repayable on demand from banks
Short term loan (ii}

Total

310.0 460.0
2,2550 1,580.0
2,565.0 2,040.0

(i) Rs. 310.0 million (March 31, 2017 :- Rs. 460.0 million) secured by way of first pari passu hypothecation charge on all existing and future receivables and current assets of the

Company.

(ii) Unsecured loan carries interest @ 7.25 %- 7.63 % per annum as at March 31, 2018,

W



VECOMMERGERYERICLES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rs. in million

- Asat Asat
Particulars Moarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current
Acceptances 8,792.0 6,520.4
Other trade payables 17,832.2 12,878.6
Total 26,624.2 19,4080

Note:- Refer note 32 for disclosures under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

25. Provision for tax (net of advance tax)

Rs. in milion

Asat Asat
D March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Provision for tax (net of advance tax) 190.3 106.8
Total 190.3 106.8

e



VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. Revenue from operations

Rs. in million
- For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Revenue from operations
Sale of producis
Manufactured goods 84,171.1 720174
Stock-in-trade 14,653.3 17,1941
Sale of services 370.1 316.2
Sub-total (A) 99,194.5 89,527.7
Other operating revenue
Export benefits 726.4 549.4
Scrap sales 293.2 2314
Income from maintenance contracts 2015 289.5
Provisions/liability no longer required written back - 159.0
Provisions for doubtful debts written back 0.8 13.1
Industrial promotion subsidy (refer note no. 49) 1,091.8 g11.8
Income from other operating revenues 558.3 472.6
Sub-total (B) 2,872.0 2,526.8
Revenue from operations (ref) Total (A+B) 102,066.5 52,054.5
Rs. in million
i For the year ended For the year ended
Lttt March 31 2018 March 31 2017 |
Details of products sold
Manufactured goods |
Commercial vehicles 67,413.0 58,494.3 .
Engines and related components 7,600.0 5,289.9 l
Spare parts and other components 9,158.1 8,2332
Total 84,171.1 72,0173
Stock-in-trade
Commercial vehicles §,891.0 12,006.0
Spare parts and other components 5,762.3 5,188.1
Total 14,653.3 17,1941
Details of services rendered
Engineering services 3.6 300
Other allied services 3395 286.2
Total 370.1 316.2
27. Other income
Rs_inmillion

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31 2018

For the year ended
March 31 2017

a) [Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost
- Deposil with bank 640.6 370.0
- Others 51.7 74.0
691.7 444.0
b) Other non-operating income
Service charges recovered 253 275
Other miscellaneous income 109.3 523
134.6 79.8
¢}  Other gains and losses
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - 4.0
Excess provision on investment in subsidiary company written back - 43.1
S 47.1
Total 826.3 570.%9

Q




VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. Cost of raw materials and components consumed

Rs. in million

For the year ended

For the year ended

L) March 31 2018 March 312017
Inventory at the beginning of the year 1,456.3 1,272.7
Add: purchases 66,946.6 49,5382
68,402.9 50,810.9
Less: inventory at the end of the year 3,005,7 1,456.3
Less: material cost of vehicles capitalised 39.7 1292
65,357.5 49,225.4
Less: sale of taw materials and components to suppliers on cost to cost basis 2,073.0 909.3
Net consumption 63,284.5 48.316.1
29, Details of purchase of stock-in-trade
Rs. in million
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
L ar March 31 2018 Macch 31 2017
Commercial vehicles 8,437.3 10,865.6
Spare parts and other components 4,655.5 4,161.7
Total 13,0928 15,027.3
30. Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Rs. in million
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

March 31 2018

March 31 2017

Inventories at the end of the year

Finished goods 3,739.2 2,981.0
Work-in-progress 493.1 4297
Stock-in-trade 1,612.5 1.222.7
A 5.844.8 4,6334

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 2,981.0 34762
Work-in-progress 429.7 421.4
Stock-in-trade 1,222.7 1,280.2
B 4,633.4 5,186.8
Net change (B-A) (1.211.4) 553.4

31. Employee benefits expenses
Rs. in million
: For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Salaries, wages, bonus etc. 6,094.2 5,548.5
Contribution to provident and other funds 202.7 193.2
Staff welfare expenses 542.5 4842
Total 6,839.4 6,225.9
32. Finance costs

Rs. in million
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

March 31 2018

March 31 2017

Interest expense

on borrowings 108.7 1284

on income tax 2.0 6.4
Unwinding of discount on provisions 50.3 436
Total 161.0 1784

R




VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Rs. in million

. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Depreciation of tangible assets * 2,507.0 2190.7
Amortisation of intangible assets 715.1 536.2

Total 3,222.1 27270
* Excludes Rs. Nil amount (previous year Rs, 1.2 million) transferred to capital work-in-progress.
34, Other expenses
Rs. in million

, For the year ended + For the year ended

Particulars March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Stores and machinery spares consumed {including loose tools) 515.6 434.0
Increase/(decrease) in excise duty on finished goods 265.8 (66.5)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 26.0 398
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets discarded 66.4 12,6
Power and fuel 728.4 581.7
Insurance 138.0 1414
Repairs and mainienance

Buildings 168.5 159.2

Plant and equipment 361.5 3079

Others 3239 271.1

Rates and taxes 67.4 129.4
Advertisement 150.1 191.0
Freight and handling charges 1,831.4 1489.0
[ncentives 107.0 292.7
Warranty 919.6 976.2
Other selling and distribution expenses 308.6 569.5
Rent 3258 3277
Legal and professional charges # 180.3 136.3
Travelling and conveyance expenses 496.8 491.2
Development and testing expenses 482.1 3305
Exchange loss 66.2 3%.00
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (refer note no, 48) 77.4 72.0
Brand fees 392.5 316.6
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 46.6 8.2
Miscellaneous expenses 698.5 828.1
Total 9,244.4 8,078.6

# Including payment to auditors as below:-
Rs. in million

- For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31 2018 March 31 2017
a) As Statutory Audit
-Audit fee 35 5.8
-Audit fees for foreign reporting 1.5 0.7
-Audit fees of accounts for fiscal year -
-Limited Review of unaudited financial results 1.5 42
b} In other capacity:
- For transfer pricing report and other certification 0.6 27
¢) Out of pocket expenses 04 02
35. Income tax expense
Rs. in million
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
i March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Current tax 1,513.1 963.8
Tax adjustment related to previous year (73.6) o
Deferred tax charge/(benefit) 345.2 {11.4)
\ Total Income tax recognised in the current year 1,784.7 952.4

&



VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income tax expense for the year can be recognised to the accounting profit as follows

Rs, in million

. For the year ended For the year ended
e A March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Profit before tax 6,520.2 4,426.2
Income Tax expenses calculated at 34.608% 2,256.5 1,531.8
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit E 18.8 15.1
Effect of Additional deduction on research and product development cost 5 (351.9) {559.1)
Effect of Additional deduction for investment allowance under Section 32 AC of the Income tax Act, 1961 - (48.9)
Others (138.8) 13.5

1,784.7 952.4
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 1.784.7 952.4
Income tax expense recognised In other comprehensive Income
Rs. in million
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Mareh 31 2018 March 31 2017
Deferred tax chiarge/ (benefit)
Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income:

- Remeasurement of defined benefit abligation (7.8) (18.4)
Total Income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income (7.8) (18.4)
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other comprehensive income into:-

Ttems that will not be rdclassified to profit or loss (7.8) (18.4)
(7.8) (18.4)

Vs,



VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36 Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. 1,935.4 million (As at March 31 2017, Rs. 1,404 4 million).
The Company has other commitments, for purchase/sales orders which are issued afler considering requirements per operating cycle for purchase /sale of goods and services,
employee’s benefits including union agreement in normal course of business. The Campany does not have any long tenn commitments or material non—cancellable contractual

37

38.

39.

(ii)
{iii)

(iv)
(v}

(vi)

commitments/contracts, which might have material impact on the fmancial statements,

Research and development expenses:

Revenue expenditure on research and development incurred and expensed off during the year through the appropriate heads of account aggregate Rs. 1,687.5 million (Rs. 1,322.9
million). The capital expenditure incurred during the year for research and development purposes aggregate Rs. 2,225.8 million (Rs, 1,363.1 million).

Rs. in million
Capital expenditure For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Building - factory 8.9 49.9
Plant and office equipment 5.2 67.2
Furniture and fittings 2.0 243
Vehicles 63.3 46.6
Intangmble assets 1,406.5 1,800.0
Capitat work in progress including intangible assets under development and 660.8 (624.9)
capital advances
Total 2,225.8 1,363.1
Rs. in million
Revenue expenditure For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Employee cost 4043.5 3892
Development expenses 290.7 13%.4
Depreciation and amortisation 788.3 608.8
Other expenses 203.1 185.5
Total 1,687.5 13229
Contingent liabilities not provided for:
Rs. in il lion
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
a) In respect of following:
- Sales tax matters 1,8%0.4 19053
- Excise duty maiters 75.6 1025
- Service tax matters 485.3 6103
- Income tax matters 0.5 Q0.5
) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debis 32,2 352
¢} Bills discounted - 200.6
d) Guaramtees given
369.0 3318

to a bank credit facility granted to 100% subsidtary companies
i s ny)

All the above matters other than bills discounted and guarantees given are subject to legal proceedings in the ordimary course of business. The legal proceedings when ultimately
concluded will not, in the apinion of management, have a material effect on the result of operations or the financial position of the Company.

Disclosures required vuder Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Rs. in million

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year.

Interest due thereon retnaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year.

The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier

beyond the appointed day,
The amount of interest due and payable for the year.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year,

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date

when the interest dues as above are actually paid.

T795.5

5738
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40.

A.

a)
b)
c)

Disclosures under Ind AS 19 (Employee Benefits)

The details of various employee benefits provided to employees are as under:

Defined contribution plans Rs. m million

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Provident fund * 194.1 1854

Superannuation fund 159 163

Employee State Insurance Corporation 16.7 11.8

* includes Rs 7.3 million {previous year Rs, 8.4 million) capitalised during the year in intangible assets under development and includes Rs. Nil (previous year Rs. 0.1 million)
capitalised during the year under pre-operative expenditure pending allocation

Qut of the total contnibution made for employees’ provident fund, Rs. 68.86 million (previous year Rs. 63,5 million} is made to Eicher Executive Provident Fund Trust, while the
remaining contribution is made to government administered provident fund.

The total plan liabilities under the Eicher Executive Provident Fund Trust as at March 31, 2018 is Rs.1896.3 million as against the total plan assets of Rs. 1906.7 million. The
funds of the trust have heen invested under various securities as prescribed under the rules of the trust

Defined benefit plans:

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, as defined benefit plan. The pratuity plan provides for a lump sum payment to the
employees at the time of separation from the service on completion of vested year of employment i.e. five years. The liability of gratuity plan is provided based on actuarial
valuation as at the end of each financial year based on which the Company contributes the asceriained liability to Life Insurance Corporation of India by whom the plan assels are
maintained.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk , longevity risk and salary risk

Investment Risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian Rupee) is calculated
using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds. Currently for the plan, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in
govemnment securitics, and other debt instruments.

Interest Risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially
offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

Longevity Risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability s calculated by reference to the best estimate
of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's ljability.

Salary Risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries
of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's
liability. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in the actuarial valuation, taken into
account inflation, seniority, promation and other relevamt factors such as supply and demand in the
employment market.
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The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2018 by Mr. K.K. Dhami (FIAl
M.No, 00051) , Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost, were measured using the

projected unit credit methad

Principal assumptions: Gratuity
As at As at
March 31, 2018 Mirgh 31, 2017
Discount rate 7.90% 7.50%
Future salary increase 7.50% 7.00%
Retirement age 58/60 years 58/60 years
Withdrawal rate 1-3% 1-3%
In service mortality sf ARG
(2006-08) (2006-08)
A nts recognised in rent of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows :- Rs. in million
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 20]7
Service cost
Current service cost 629 57.8
Past service cost and (gain)Loss from setilements = =
Net interest expense 3.7 4.9
Component of defined benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 716 62.7
Remcasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Retum on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) - -
Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (gains)/ losses ariging from ¢hanges in financial assumptions 6.7 -
Actuarial (gains) losses arising from experience adjustments 15.9 53.1
Component of defined benefit cost recognised in Other comprehensive Income 226 53.1
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's ebligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows ¢ Rs. in million
Gratuity
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Present Value of funded defined benefit obligation 7327 666.6
Fair value of plan assets 7327 666.6
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation = -
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :-
Rs. in million
Particulars Gratuity
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Presant value of obligation as at the begenaing 666.6 555.1
Current service cost 62.9 578
Interest cost 50.0 41.6
Benefits paid (72.7) (50.8)
Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognised 25.9 62.9
Present value of oblimation as at the end 732.7 666.6
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of fund
Particulars Gratuity
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Present Value of fund as at the beginning 666.6 555.1
Interest income 41.3 36.7
Coniribution 94.2 1158
Net actuarial gain / {loss) recognised 33 98
Benefits paid (727 (50.8)
Presant value of fund as at the epd @ 732.7 666.6

@ Funds are managed by VECV Employees Group Gratuity Scheme.
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41,

The major categories of plan assets as percentage of total assets maintained with the approved insurance companies for VECV Trust are as follows:

Rs. in million

Particulars As at As at
Mavrch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Corporate Bonds categorised by issuers' credit rating

AAA 1023 1223

AA 16.2 27

A 7.4 -
Caorporate debt bonds (traditional plan) 234.2 222 4
Fixed deposits with banks " d
Guowermiment securities / Treasury Bills 341.5 2432
Money Market 223 24.1
Others 8.8 319

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase, mortalily, etc. The sensitivity analysis below have

been determined based on 1

Bl

possible ch of the respective assumplions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other asswnptions constani,

- If the discount rate is 0.5 basis points higher (lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease by Rs, 32.1 million (increase by Rs, 34,7 million ) ( as at March 31, 2017:

Decrease by Rs 28.4 million (increase by Rs 30.7 million))

- If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by 0.5 basis points, the defined benefit obligation would increase by Rs. 34,7 million (decrease by Rs. 32,4 million) ( as at

March 31, 2017: increase by Rs 30.7 million (decrease by Rs 28.7 million}).

Sensitivities due to change in mortality rate and change in withdrawal rate are not material and hence impact of such change is not calculated.

Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would

accur in jsolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be comrelated

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivily analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been caleulated using the projected unit credit method at the end
of reporting period, which is same as that applied in caleulating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

Asset-Liability Matching Study
There is no (deficit)/Surplus of liability and funds, hence asset liability matching study not performed,

Other disclosures

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particul As at As at

articulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Average duration of the defined benefit obligation {in years) 9 Years 9 Years
The estimated contribution during tiext year is Rs. 77.8 million (previous year Rs, 72,9 million) to the defined benefit plan.
Earnings per share
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
a) Profit after taxation, per statement of profit and loss (Rs. in million) 4,735.5 34738
b) Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) 10,000,000 10,000,000
¢) Earnings per share (in rupees):
(face value-Rs. 10 per share)

- Basic and Diluted [{a)/(b)] 473.55 347.38

ﬂ/
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42.1

42.2

423

Financial instruments

Capital Management

The Company manages ils upllal 10 ensure that the Company will be able 1o continue as going concem while maxirmsing the return to stakeholders through efficient allocation of capital towards
ion of business, isation of working capital requirements and deployment of surplus funds into varicus invesiment options. The Company docs not have lanj-term debt and uses the

npemtmna! cash flows and equily to meet its capltal reqmremenls

The Company is not subject to any lly imposed capital req

The management of the Company reviews the capital siructure of the Company on regular basis. As part of this review, the 1 of the Comp iders Lhe cost of capital and the risks

associated with the movement in the working capital

The following table summarizes the capal of the Company:

Rs. in million
Asat Asat
— March 31, 2018 Mageh 31, 2017
Share capitsl 100,0 1000
Oiher equity 323758 28.798 5
324758 23 898 5
C ies of financial instr t
Carrying value of the financial instruments are as follows:-
Rs. in million
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Financial assels carvied at Gair value through profit and loss (FYTPL)
In m equity i 0.5 [T}
Financial assets al amartised cost
Non-current
Trade receivables 19.7 9.0
Loans 21,7 19.1
Other financial assets 343.7 378
Cuwrreni
Trade receivables 14,138.1 104359
Cash and cash equivalents 8,260,8 10,562 4
Loans 152 569
Other financial assels 1,904.1 1,244.7
Fingneial liahilities at aniortived cost
Nan-current
Other financial lisbilities 64.2 975
Current
Baorrowings 1,565.0 2,0400
Trade payables 26,624.2 19.408.0
Other financial lisbilites 2.682.2 22122
Fair vahie measurements

This section provides edditional information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments:-

The following methods and ions were used o 36 the fair values -

The following able cateporise the financial » d at fair value panied into Level 1 10 Level 3, as described below.

Level 1: This level includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: This level includes financial assets and liabililies, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, sither directly (i,
as prices} or indirectly (i, derived from prices)

Level 3: This level includes financial asseis and lisbilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in
part, using a valuation model based on assumplions Lhat are neither supported by prices from observable current market iransactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market
data

Fair value of the Company’s financial asscts that ave measured at fair value on a recurring basis:-
There are certain Company’s financial essets which are measured are fair value at the end of each reporting period. Following table gives information about how the fair values of these finangial
assels are determined:-

Re. wm million
Fair value as at
March 31, 2018 March 3, 2017
Level 3 Luvel 3
Financial assets at fnir value tough profit ar Joss
Non-current
1 in equily i 0.5 05
Fair value of the Company's financial assets and financial ki ies that are not measured at Giir value (bui fair value diselosures are required)
The management considers that the carrying of financial ssets and finencial labilities recognised in the fnancial approxi third fair values
Notes;
Fair value of cash and shori-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, irade payables, short-term b angs, other finangial liabilities and other financial instruments approximate

their carrying amounts largely due to (he short-lerm maturities of these instrumenis

Invesiment in fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and the fair value is estimated by discounling future cash flows using a discount rate equivalent to the risk free returm, adjusted for any
expecled credit loss allowance

The fair value for loans, securily deposits vduch approximates them carrying values were calculated on cash flows discounted using a cumrent lendmg rale,

uges its best judp| in p the fair value of its financial ingtruments, However, there are inherent limitations in any hnique. Therefore, for subslantially all
financial instruments, the fair value esnmalus presenled above are not ily indicative of all the that the Company ecould have realized or paid in sale transactions as of respective
dates As such, the fair value of the fi l insiruments subseq to the respective reporting dates may be different from the amounts reported at each year end.
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42.4 Financial risk management objectives and Paolicies

The Company's ireasury function is manuged by its Corporate Office Finance Department (COFD) which monilors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Company.
These risks include market risk (mcludmg currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk

‘The COFD eval and dependent control over the enlire process of market risk management. The treasury d T ds risk aps objectives and policies,
which are approved by Senior Management, The achivities of this depariment includes management of gash resources, :mplememing strategies for foreign currency exposures and ensuring
market risk limit and policies.

The Company does not enter into or trade financial insizuments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes

Market risk
Markey risk is the risk of any loss in fitwre eauings, in realisable Fair values or i future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The Company's activilies
expose It primarily o the fimancial nsks of changes in foreign y exchy rates. Market risk exposures are measured using sensilivity analysis

Foreign currency mk lmm.uemem
The Comp d inated in foreign currencies; raie ) ions arise.

The carrying amounts of the Cnmpanys foreign currency denominated monetary assets md monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows

I h

o

{in million)
| As at March 31, 2018 As it March 31, 2017

Forelgn curtency expasure Trade Receivables Trade Payables “Trinde Receivables Trage Payables
usp s 4.7 171 1.5
EURO 0.7 29 0.7 1.0
SEK 0.6 6.7 - 54
IPY - 147.3 9 508
Others - 28.0 - 1.6

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table detsils the Company's itivity to a 5% i and d in the Rs. against the relevant foreign ies. 5% is Lhe ity rate used when reponiing foreign
currency risk intemally 1o key | and rep ' of the bly possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
ding foreign I munamy items and adjusis I.hc.lf uanslation at the period ead for & 5% change in foreipn currency rates A positive number below indicates an increase

in profil or equily where the Rs, strengthens 5% against (he relevani currency. For a 5% weakening of the Rs. againsi the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or
equity, and the balances below would be negative

(Ra, i million)
Curvency As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
5% increase 5% decrease 5% increasie 8% decreass

Receivable
UsD {188.6) 105.6 85,3 553
EURO (2.7} 2.7 (2.5) 25
PY - - {0.1) 0.1
Payable
usp 151 {15.1) 4.9 {4.9)
EURO 1.3 {11.8) EE] {3.5)|
SEK 26 2:5) 20 2.0}
Y 45 (4.5) 1.7 TR}
Others 40 {400 1.7 [T
Tmpact on profit or loss as at the end of the reporiing (70.2) 70,2 {44.1) 44.1
period
Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting period {45.9) 459 (28.8) 88

In management’s opinion, Lhe sensifivity analysis is unrepresenative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure al the end of the reporting period does net reflect the exposure
during the year/ in future years

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the nisk that a counterparty will default on its coniractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a poliey of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of fi ial loss from defaulis. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limils that arc reviewed and approved by the
management of the Company

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of eredit risk, principally consist of balance with banks, investments in fixed deposits, frade receivables, and other loans and advances.
None of the fimancial instruments of the Company result in matenal concentrations of credit nsks

Balances with banks were nol past due or impaired as at (he year end. [n other financial assets that are not past dues and not impaired, there were no mds of defaull in repay as at he

vear end

The age analysis of trade receivables as of the balance sheet date have been considered from the due date and disclosed in the note no. 10 above

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the exp d loss all ce for fi ial assets based on historical credit loss expenience and adjustments for forward looking

information

Movement in the expected eredit loss all of fi inl asseis Rs_in millicn
Far the year ended  For the year ended March

March 31, 2018 i1, 2017

Balance at begnning of the year 1423 1517

Add: Provided during the year 46.6 82

Less: reversals of provision {0.8) (EENN]

Less: amounts written off {11.2) {4.00

Balance at end of the year 177.3 142 8

The above does not include provision for diminulion in the value of in n subsidiary pany

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the inability of the Company 10 mee its finangial obligations within sripulated 1ime

Maturity profile of financial liabilities:
The table below provides details regarding the

QA

| maturities of financial liabilities st the reporting date.
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Rs_ in milliou
As at March 31, 2018
Particulars I L
Lésy than More than
1 year 1 Year-S year B Total
an-curent
(1) Other financial labilities - - 6.2 64.2
Current
(1) Bormowings 2,565.0 - = 2.565.0
(1) Trade payables 26,624.2 - - 26,624.2
{iit) Other financial linbilines 2.682.2 T = 246822
Re inmillion
As at March 31, 2017
|Particulars
Less than More than
oz 1 Year-5 year S years Total
Non-curreit
(1) Other financial liabilities - 330 64,5 97.5
Current
(1) Borrowinys 2.040.0 - = 2.040.0
{1} Trade payables 19,408 0 - - 19 408 O
it} Other financial habilines 22122 - - 232122

‘The surplus funds with the Company and operational cesh flows will be sufficient to dispose the financiel lLiabilities with in the maturity period.
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43.

Segment Reporting Disclosure

P

I Cha

The Company primarily operates in the automotive segment. The automotive segment includes all activities related to development, design, manufacture, assembly and

sale of commercial vehicles, as well as sale of related parts and accessories,

The board of directors of the Company, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Company's performance, allocate
resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of the Company as a single unit. Therefore, there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the

requirement of IND AS 108 “Operating Segments”.

Geographical information

The "Geographical Segments” comprises of domestic segment which includes sales to customers {ocated in India and the overseas segment includes sales to

customers located outside India.

(Rs. in million)

Domestic Overseas Total
Revenue from operations
For the vear ended March 31, 2018 85.520.2 16,546.3 102066.5
For the vear ended March 31, 2017 78.860.7 13,193.8 92.054.5

a) Domestic segment includes sales and services to customers located in India.
b) Overseas segment includes sales and services rendered to customers located outside India.
¢) There are no material non-current assets located outside India.

d) The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for the Company. Revenue have been identified to

segments oh the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Information about major customers
No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue.
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dd.

Relared parvty discloswres under Ind AS 24
Related party disclosures

(5} Subsidiaries companies

Eicher Engineening Solutions, Inc,, U.S.A *

Eicher Engineering, Solutions (Beiiing) Co., Lid *
Eicher Engineering Solutions {Shanghai} Co., Ltd *
V E C V Lanka (Private) Limited

VECY South Africa (Piy.} Limited

* Ceased fo be subsidinry company w.e.f. March 18, 2017

{ii) Investor in respect of which the Company is a joint venture
Bicher Motors Limited
Akticbolaget Velvo (PUBL), Volvo, Swedan

{iii) Joint venture company
Eicher Group Feundation

(iv) Entity under (he conirol of co-venturer (AB Volva)
Velve do Brasil Veiculos Lida
Renault Trucks SAS

UD Trucks Comporalion
Velve Group India Private Ltd
Volvo Lestvagner AB

Volve Powerirain Corporation
Volvo Bussar AB

AB Volvo Penta

Volvo Information Technology AB .
Volvo Logistics AB

Yolvo Business Sarvices AB

Yalvo Pasts AB

Volva Construction Equipment AB

Thal Swedish Assembly

Volvo Truck Comoration

Volvg Merchandise AB

Volwo Bus Corporation

Volwo Esst Asia (Pte) Ltd.

PT Volvo Asia

Ud Trucks Southem Africa (Ptv) Ltd

Volve Group Middle East FZE

PT. YOLYVO NDONESIA

Renault Trucks Gars VI

Renault Trucks

(¥) Entity under the jolat conirel of co-vomturer (EML)
Eicher Polaris Privite Limited

(EES, Inc.)

(EES, Beiiing)

(EES, Shanghai)
(VECYV Lanka)
(VECV South Africa}

[EML}
(AB Volvo)

{EGF)

(EPPL)

{vi) Entity under the conirel of key manasement personnel and their relatives

Eicher Goodearth Private Limited

vil) Other relnted narties

Eicher Executive Provident Fund

Bicher Tractors B ive Stalf'S ion Fund
VECV Employees Group Gratuity Scheme

fviil] Key mianasement personsiel
Vinod Aggarwal
Siddhartha Lal
Hakan Karlsson
Jecques Miche!
Philippe Diviy
Raul Rai

Praieek Jalan

Lila Poonawalla
Anders Haper
Praveen Kumar Jain

\%

(EGPL)

Post emiploymment benefit plan
Post smployment benefit plan
Pogt employment benefit plan

Managing dinsctor (w.e f. Dctober 26, 2018), Chisf Executive Officer
Director, Chairman (upto May 2, 2017)

Cheirmaen {w.ef My 3, 2017)

Director {w.e.f. October 26, 2016)

Director

Director

Independent Dirscior

Independent Direcior

Chiaf Financiel Officer (w.e f. December 1,2017)

Company Secretary
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R in million
Name of velated party Nature of traneaction For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
{1} Subsidiaries companles
Eicher Bngineering Solutions Ine Sale of finished povds/services - -
Purchass of goods [/ services - 1.1
Expenses recovored . &
Expensss reimbursed - 56
Investment in equity share capital - 1146
¥ B € V Lanka (Private) Limited Sale of goads { services 5542 5035.8
Others 14.6 114
Expenss reimbursed L6 -
VECYV South Aftica (Pty) Limited Sale of finished apods/sorvices 8.7 108
Others 13 96
Investment in equity Share capital 30,0 50
{Ii} Investor kn respect of which the Company Is a joint venture
Eicher Motors Limited Sala pf finished goods/services 19889 14574
Comorats service charges recovered 35 260
Dividend paid £168 -
Tooling advance received 18 =
Bxpenses recovered 31 43
Others 82 .
Aktiebolaget Volvo (PUBL), Volvo, Sweden Dividend paid 4332 -
(iliy Joint venture company
Bicher Group Foundation Contribution for carporate social responsibility 1] 597
(iv) Entlty under the comtrol of co-ventures (AD Velvol}
Vohvwo do Brasil Veiculos Lida Sale of finished goods / eervices 177 73
Rensult Trucks SAS Sale of fintshod goods / eervices 33608 3,101.7
Evwpenges meoyvered 34 08
Expenses reimbursed - 196
Parchase of goods / services 938 213
“Purchsss of cepital oad vices 26746 63.7
Others 1253 -
UD Trucks Comporation Sala of finished goods / services 238 2368
Expensies soimbursed 165 87
Purchags of meods / services 73 109
Pmdnsanfupilll podsfcervices 04 44
Yolvo Group Indis Privwie Lid Sale of finished poods/ services N4 2108
Expenses tecovered G443 766.7
Expenses roimbursed 232 09
Parchase of poods 14,1904 142423
Purchase of capilal poodsféervices MY 714
Othems - [x ]
Volvo Powsrtrain Corporation Sale of finishod acods/ eervices 16.1 -
Variance paid - 5315
Esipenies recovered - 56
Others 128 72
AB Volvo Penta Sale of finighed yoods/ gervices 1.2 12
Velvo Information Technology AR Purchase of Roods / services 249 19.3
Purchass of capital goods/services -
Volvo Logistics AB Expenses recoversd - 34
Purchase of goods / services (5 |
Others - 0.1
Volvo Parts AB Sale of finished goods / services 03 03
Volvo Construction Equipment AB Sals of finished goods / services 14 0.1
Thai Swedish Assembly Sale of finished goods / sarvices 09 0.4
Bipenses recovered 3
Volve Truck Corporation Sale of finished goods / services 26602 14053
Expenses recovered 1768 3347
‘Brpenses reimbursed - 0?7
Purchase of goods / services 611 43.9,
Purchese of capitel roods/services 683 46.1
Others 457 17.1
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Rs. in million
Name of related party Mature of fransacton For the yoar cndod For the year ended
Murch 31,2018 March 31, 2017
UD Trucks Southern Afnica (Piy.) Limited Sale of finished goods/ services - -
Yolvo Group Middle East FZE Sale of finished pooda/ services - 04
Expénises recovered - ol
Renault Trucks Gare V1 ’ Sale of finished goods/ services 1.0 07
Yolvo Bus Corporation Sale of finiished goods/ services 82 .
Expenses recovered 853 2047
Volvo Bast Asin (PTE) Itd Sale of finished goddal servicos al 0.1
‘Volvo Parts Corporalion Purchase of goods / services 164 126
Renault Trucks Purchase of zoods / services 124.6 -
PT Volvo Indonesia Pyrchase of Roods / services %3 -
{v) Entity under the |oint control of co-venturer (EML)
Richer Polaris Private Limited Sale of finished goods/ services 4.5 13.6
Corporale service charges recovered 1.2 1.5
Tooling advance received 0.1 0.4
Others 0.4 0.7
{vl) Entity under the contral of key management peryonnel
Eicher Goodearth Private Limited Expenses recovered . .
Expenses reimbursad 89 19.5
Leaso rent 1222 9.0
Brand fee s 366
(vii} Qiher relnted parties
Eicher Executive Provident Fund Contribution made 689 615
Eicher Tractors B ivo Staff § ion Fund Contrioution mads 153 153
VECV Emplovees Group Gratuily Scheme Contribution made to fund %4.2 1158
Benefits paid through fund 2.7 508
(vill) Key managomeni pemsonacd
Vinod Agaarwal Short- tarm benefits £T.0 389
Post- employment benefiis 19 23
Other long- term benefits 0.0 04
53.0 416
Gilles Boutte Short-term berwefits 145 274
Anders Hager Shert-term benefits 88 -
Pravesa Kumar Jain Short- term benefits 50 37
Post- employmeant bemefits 0.1 0.1
Other long- torm benefits [X] 00
£2 kL]
Pradeck Jalen Sitting fers 14 03
Lila Poonawalla Sitting fees 14 o7
Balance outstanding at the yoar end
Re in siilion
Name of velnfed party Nature For the year ended For tho year ended
Mareh 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
1§} Subsidiaries companies
Eicher Emmneering Solution Inc - Receivables - =
- Peyables - 19
= Guarantees given . -
VECY South Africe (Pty.} Limited - Receivables 831 104
- Gusrantees given 56.2 -
- Investrient 650 350
VECY Lanka (Private) Limited - Receivables 1430 1529
- Guargntees given 28 247.6
- Investment 543 543
{1i} Investor in respect of which the Company |s a lolnt venture
Eicher Motors Limited - Receivables 456,1 3268
- Pavables 0.4
Aktisbolapet Volvo (PUBL). Yolvo, Swedsn - Payables - -
(fif} Entity under the control of foinl venturer (AB Yolva)
Volvo do Brasil Veiculos Lida = Receivables 83 36
Renault Trucks SAS - Receivables 705 593.2
~Other financial assots - -
( - Paysbles 3151 16.2
UD Trucks Comeration - Reeeivables 42 6.7
- Payables 64 64
Volve Group India Private Ltd - Receivebles 279 563
~Other financiel sssets - 353
- Puyables 1053 1.798.5

Q{?



VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED 9
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Re in million
Name of related party Nature For the year ended For the year ended
March 31. 2018 March 31, 2017
Volvo Powerirain Corporztion = Recaivables 19 i6
<Other financial assets - s
- Pavables 15 1151
AB Volvo Penta - Receivables 0.1 -
Volvo Information Technology AB = Pavables 14 144
Volvo Logistics AB - Pavables 1.3 00
Volvo Parts AR - Receivables [N ] 0z
Volve Construction Equipment AB = Receivables - -
= Pavables - -
Thai Swadish Asseribly -Receivables 04 02
VYelvo Trucks Corporation - Receivables 5084 2585
-Other flnancial assets - -
- Pavables 370 273
UD Trucks Southern Africa (Pty) Ltd = Payables =
Velvo Group Middle Bast FZB - Receivables - 04
Renault Trucks Gare V1 « Receivables 03 0.7
Volvo Bus Corporation - Recoivables 617 68
Volvo Bus India Private Limited = Roceivables - -
«Orther fingncinl assets -
Velve Merchandise AB = Roceivables = .
Volve Paris Comporation - Payshlss - 11.0
Renault Trucks ~ Raceivables 318 -
{v} Eatity under the jeint comirol of jolat vesturer {EMLY
Eicher Polaris Private Linited ~Recoivables 19 21
-Advances from Customars - 01
{vl) Endity wndes the control of key ssangsediont pernomscl
Bicher Goodearth Private Limited = Paysblos 269 066
= Security Deposit Raceivaible 351 351
Notes to the related panty transactions

Quistanding balances at the vear ond are unsecured and setthement oocurs in cash.

5K



YE COMMERCIAL YEHICLES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45.

Diaclosure in respect of leases

(A} Operating lease
The Company has taken certain premises under various operating leasc agreements. The total lease rental recognize as expense aggregate to Rs. 325.8 million (previous period Rs. 327.7 million)

L4}

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in the aggregate and for each of the following periods:

e

//F- '
( U2-)

{Rs. in million)

Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Mot later than one vear 42.7 69.6
Later than one year and not Jater than five years 46.4 44.6
Later than five years 0.3 35

Finance lease

The Company has entered into {inance Jease arrangements for certain vehicles, Future minimum lease payments and reconciliation of gross investment in the lease and present value of minimum lease

payments are as under:

(Rs. in million)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Future minimum lease paymenis
- not later than one year 8.5 2333
- later than one year and not Iater than five years 19.7 98.2
Less: future finance charges 9.2 355
Present value of minimum lease payments receivable
- not later than one year 7.3 207.0
- later then one year and not later than five years 89.0

16.3
- later than five years =

Ungpuaranteed residual value .
Accumulated provision for uncollectible minimum lease payments receivable =
Contingent rents recopnised in Statement of Profit or loss during the year =

46, The detalls of disputed excise duty, sales tax, service tax and income tax dues as on March 31, 2818 which have not been deposited or deposited under protest ave as follaws:

\

Amount paid F .
Nature of the Statute Forum where pending S under protest Eetiod ol tichlamunt
(Rs, in million) e relate
(Rs. in million)
Central Excise Act Appellate Authority upto L3 - |1992-93 to 199798
Commissioner’s level
CESTAT 143.6 83.6 | 1998-99, 260607, 2007-
08, 2010-2011, 2012-2013,
2012-15,2007-10
Sales Tax Act Appellate Authority upta 1,753.5 176.4 (1995-96, 2005-06, Z006-
Commissioner's level 07, 2007-10, 2014-15,
2013-14,
Appellate Tribunal 99.9 241 |1991-92 to 1994-95, 1994-
99, 1999.00,
2000-01, 2002-03 and
2009-10, 2013-14 and
2011-12
High Court 60.1 3.0 |1995-96, 2005-06,
2000-01 & 2008-09 &
2009-10.
Finance Act, 1994 CESTAT 4883 16.7 |1007-08, 2003-07, 2009-
10, 2010-11, 2011-13,
2014-15 & 2015-16,
Income Tax Act, 1961 Appellate Authority upte @5 -
Commissioner's level

1 orders including 1

* Amount s per d and penalty wherever indicated in the order

QL



VE COMMERCIAL YEHICLES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING FPART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47,

48,

49,

50.

51,

Remlitance in forelgn currency towards dividends:

The particulars of dividends declared during the year and paid to As at As at
non-resident shareholders are a5 under: March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
(1) Number of non-resident sharcholders

(&) For 2016-17 Nos. 2 -

(b) For 2017-18 Nos. 2 -
(i) Number of shareg held by them

{a) For 2016-17 Nos. 4,560,000 3

. {b) For 2017-18 Nes. 4,560,000 =

(i) Gross amonnt of dividend

(a) For 2015-17 Rs, in millions 433.2 -

(b) For 2017-18 Rs. in millions - -

Expenditure on Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR)

(Rs. in millions)

Particulars

{g) Gross amount required to be spent
(b} Amount spent:

(i) Construction/acquisition -of any asset
(i) On purpose other than (i) above

(¢} Administrative expense

As Bt As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
774 719

73.5 710

13.5 TL0

39 10

As per Madhya Pradesh (M.P.} Investment Promotion Scheme 2014, the Company ie eligible for State Government incentives in the form of reimbursement of 75% of Value added tax (VAT) paid after

adjusting input tax rebate on VAT/ CST,

Post GST implementation effective July 1, 2017, the VAT / CST Acts have been repealed but as the eforesaid Scheme has not been withdrawn by the MP Government, the benefits fherein continue,
Further, the State Government has assured the Compeny that a notification on revised criteria for the calculation of incentive under GST regime shall be announced soon and the incontive under GST
tegime should be more or less at par with incentives under VAT negime, The 12
been withdrawn and heace the Cottpany continucs to be eligible for these inocatives. Accondingly, the Company has accrued the incentives amopnting o Rs.774 mitlion in drese financial statements post

GST implementation.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative conizacts for which there were any material foresesable losses.

There wene no amounts which wene roquired te be transferred to the Investor Education snd Protection Fund by the Company,

1y

d a lcgal opinion confirming thet as on date the State Government policy on incentives has not



VYE COMMERCIAL VERICEES LIMITED
NOTES FORMING FART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T

52, Previous year's figures have been fregrouped wh v to

In terms of our, report attached.

For S.R.Batlibol & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005

Per Sanjay Vij
Partner
Membership no.: 55169

Place : Gurugram
Date :

to the current year presentation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Praveen Jain

Company Secrelary
M No. 3524

Vinod Aggarwal
Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 00038%06

Anders Hager

Chief financial Officer
Hakan Karlsson Siddhartha Lal
Chairman Director
DIN: 05195444 DIN: 00037645



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of VE Commercial Vehicles Limited

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of VE Commercial
Vehicles Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), comprising of the consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial statements™).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) that
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consclidated statement of
changes in equity of the Group in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and of its
associates and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s



Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2018, their consolidated profit including other comprehensive
income, their consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
ended on that date.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of

subsidiaries incorporated outside India viz., V E C V Lanka Private Limited (V E C V Lanka),
and VECV South Africa (PTY) Limited (VECV South Africa) whose Ind AS financial statements
include total assets of Rs.359.8 million and net assets of Rs.281.8 million as at March 31, 2018,
and total revenues of Rs.797.1 million and net cash (inflows) of Rs.40.8 million for the year
ended on that date. These financial statement and other financial information have been audited
by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports
have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of such other auditors.
These subsidiaries are located outside India whose financial statements and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted
auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Company’s management has
converted the financial statements of such subsidiaries located outside India from accounting
principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally
accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Company’s
management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiaries
located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments
prepared by the management of the Company and audited by us.

(b) The consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017,
included in these consolidated Ind AS financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on May 3, 2017.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as
noted in the ‘other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We / the other auditors whose reports we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

Y



(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination
of those books and reports of the other auditors;

(c) The consolidated Balance Sheet, consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standard} Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, none of
the directors of the holding company is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. The subsidiaries within the group are not
incorporated in India, the reporting requirements on disqualifications of directors in terms of
section 164 (2) of the Act is not applicable for subsidiary companies.

(f) With respect to the adequacy and the operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting, refer to our separate report in “Annexure 1” to this report which is based on
the auditor’s report of the holding company. Since the subsidiaries are not incorporated in India,
the reporting requirements on adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls
over financial reporting under section 143 (3) (i) of the Act is not applicable for these
subsidiaries.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the
report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial information
of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
its consolidated financial position of the Group — Refer Note 38 to the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements;

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2018. Refer Note 47 to the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company during the year ended March 31, 2018.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Sanjay Vij

Partner

Membership Number: 095169
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 8, 2018

A\l



ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES
LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of VE Commercial Vehicles
Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls
over financial reporting of VE Commercial Vehicles Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding
Company”) as of that date. Since the subsidiaries are not incorporated in India, the reporting
requirements on adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial
reporting under section 143(3)(i) of the Act is not applicable for these subsidiaries.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

N



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company has maintained in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003 E/E300005

per Sanjay Vij

Partner

Membership Number: 095169
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 8, 2018



CONSOLIDATED VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018

million
. As at As at
Particulars Note March31,2018  March 31,2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 5 16,3221 15,5499
(b) Capital work-in-progress 6 964.5 1,759.1
(c) Intangible assets 7 5,208.3 4,304.5
{d) Intanpible assets under development 8 23872 19125
(¢) Financial assets
(1) Investments 9 0.5 05
(ii} Trade receivables 10 19.7 89.0
(iii} Loans 11 21.7 19.1
(iv) Other financial assets 12 344.3 3392
(f) Other assets 13 2.032.6 16582
Total non-current assefs 27,300.9 25,632.0
Current assets
(a) Inventories 14 9,489.9 6,627.7
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 13,924.7 10,296.1
(ii} Cash and cash eauivalents 15 3.452.2 3,107.8
(iif) Bank balances other than {if) above 16 12.655.1 74732
(iv) Loans 11 15.2 56.9
(v} Other financial asseis 12 1,905.6 1,244 8
(c) Other assets 13 1.690.6 2.819.2
Total current assels 43,1333 31,6257
Total assels 704342 57,2577
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(2} Equity share capital 17 1000 1000
(b} Cther equity 18 32,331.8 28,7762
Total equity 32.431.8 28.876.2
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
({a) Financial labilities
(i) Other financial liabilitics 64.2 92.5
(b} Provisions 20 1,608.1 1,246.2
(c) Deferred 1ax liabilities (net} 21 4252 102,7
(d} Other liabilities 22 334.7 3754
Total nom-current liabilities 2,432.2 1,821.8
Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 23 2,587.4 2,040 0
(ii} Trade payables 24 26,6358 19,4154
(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 2.650.8 22122
(b) Provisions 20 910.1 8585
{(c) Income tax Yabilities (net) 25 190.7 105.1
(d) Other liabilities 2 21,5954 1.928.5
Total current liabilities 35,570.2 26,5597
Total liabilities 38,0024 28,3815
Total equity and liabilities 70.434.2 57,2577
See accompanying netes forming part of the financial statements 1t049

In tenns of our report attached.

For S.R.Batliboi & Ca. LLP For and on hehalf of the Boavd of Directors
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005

Per Sanjay Vij Praveen Jain Anders Hager
Partner Company Secretary Chief financial Officer
Membership no.: 95169 M No. 3524

Yinod Apgarwal Hakan Karlsson Siddhartha Lal

Managing Director and Chairman Director

Chief Executive Offtcer

DIN: 00038906 DIN: 05195444 DIN: 00037645

Place : Gurugram
Dale :

C\D/.
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CONSOLIDATED VE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

e

(2)

Rs. in million

. For the ycar ended For the year ended
Barviculazs Nule March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Income

Revenue from operations 26 102,233.4 92,620.8
Other Income 27 826.6 572.1
Total Income 103,060.0 93,192.9
Expenses
Cost of raw materials consumed 28 63,282.7 48,505.0
Purchases of stock-in-trade 29 13,241.6 15,027.3
Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 30 (1,274.0} 504.2
Excise duty on sale of goods 1,739.8 7,092.5
Employee benefits expenses 31 6,885.2 6,512.5
Finance costs 32 162.5 185.9
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 33 3,225.2 27314
Other expenses 34 9,303.2 8,195.0
Total expenses 96,566.2 88,753.8
Profit before tax 6,493.8 4,439 ]
Tax expense
Current tax 35 1,518.8 971.2
Tax adjustment relating to earlier years (72.8) -
Deferred tax charge/(benefit) 35 331.6 (15.0)
Total tax expense 1,777.6 9562
Profit for the year 4,716.2 34829
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:-
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (22.6) (53.1)
Income tax benefit 35 7.8 18.4
Net other comprehensive income not to he reclassified to profit or loss (14.8) (34.7)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss:-
Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations 3.9) (26.4)
Income tax effect a5 1.3 9.1
2-6) (173
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss (17.4) (52.0)
Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 4,698.3 3,430.9
Eamings per share (of Rs, 10 each) in Rs.
Basic/ diluted 471.62 348,29
See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1t049
In terms of our report attached
For S.R.Batlibel & Co. LLP Far and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 301003E/E300005
Per Sanjay Vij Praveen Jain Anders Hager
Pariner Company Secretary Chief financial Officer
Membership no.; 95169 M No. 3524
Vinod Aggarwal Hakan Karlsson Siddhartha Lal
Managing Director and Chairman Director
Chief Executive Officer

Place : Gurugram
Date :

L%

DIN: 00038906

DIN: 05195444

DIN: 00037645



CONSOLIDATED YE COMMERCIAL VEHICLES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2048

Rs. in million

Particulars

i For the year ended

March 31, 2018

For the year ended

A.CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

March 31, 2017

Profit after tax 4,716.2 3,4829
Adjustments for:
Current tax 1.518.8 971.2
Minimum alternate tex (MAT) credit enlitlement (72.8) (109.2)
Deferred lax charge/(benefit) 316 942
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 32252 2,697.0
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - [ER)
Property. plant and equipment and intangible assets discarded 664 126
Laoss on sale of property, plant and equipment 264 393
Exchange fluctuation of subsidiary company transferred to exchange loss pursuant to divestment - 200
Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations a9 (26 4)
Re-measuremenl gaing/ (losses) on defined benefit plans {22.6) (53.1)
Prefit on divestment of subsidiary company - (43.1)
Interest income {(691.9) (445.2)
Finance costs 162.5 185.9
Operating profit before changes in working capital 9.255.5 6.822.6
Changes in working capital:
Adijustments for (increase) / decrease assets:
Non-current
Trade receivables 69.3 267.00
Loans 2.6 a.n
Other financial assets {8.51 {29.6)
Other assets {192.2) (435.9)
Current
Inventories (2,862.1) 3195
Trade receivables (3,628.5) (2313.4)
Loans 41.7 308)
Other financial assets (507.8) 547
Other assets 1,128.6 {26.0)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in liabilities:
Non-current
Other financial hiabilities (0.3} {167.7)
Provisions 361.9 301.3
Other abilities (40.7) 99.7
Current
Trade pavables 72204 1.604.0
Provisions SL.6 2085
Other financial liebilities 5222 10013
Other kiabilities 667.0 1338
Cash generated from operating activities 12,075.5 79914
Income taxes paid (1,360.4) {946.5)
Net cash flow lrom operating activities (A) 19,7151 7.044 9
B.CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets {including capital advances) 5.040.5) (3.749.2)
Sale of fiked assets 67.6 66.8
Investment in fixed deposits (5.17B.5) (7.077.6)
Interest received £38.9 3136
Net cash flow from Investing activities (B} {9,612.3} (10.386.4)
C.CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in short term borrowings (nety 547.4 14070
nterest paid {162.5) (185.9)
Dividend paid {950.0) -
Tax on dividend {193.4) -
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) {750.5) 1,2211
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (AVHBH(C ) 3443 (2,120.49)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 3.107.8 52282
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 3.452.1 _ 31,1078
Ry million
Particulars As at

March 31, 2017

Components of cash and cash equivalenis
Cash on hand
Cheques/ drafts on hand
Balances with banhs:
Tn current accounts
In deposit accounts
Total cash and cash equivalents {refer note no, 15)

See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our repoert altached

For S.R.Balliboi & Co, LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICA! Firm Registration No,: 301003 E/E300003

Per Sanjay Vij
Partner
Membership no.: 25169

Place : Gurugram
Date:

11 11
3467 1927
4544 180.8

2,650.0 2.732.2
3,452.1 3,107.8

11049

For and on behall of Beard of Directors

Praveen Jain
Company Secretary
M No. 3524

Yinod Aggarwal
Managing Director .
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 00038906

Anders Hager
Chief financial Officer

Hakan Karlsson
Chairman

DIN: 05185444

Siddhartha Lal
Director

DIN: 00017645
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VE Commercial Vehicles Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements

1. General Information

VE Commercial Vehicles Limited (“the Holding Company™) is a public Company domiciled & incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Holding Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
referred to as “the Group”) is engaged in the manufacturing and selling of motorised commercial vehicles, spare
parts and related services. The Group is a leading commercial vehicles manufacturer and has a dominant
presence in Indian domestic market. :

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 were approved by the Board of Directors and
authorize for issue on May 8, 2018.

2 Basis of preparation and presentation

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind ASs notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

2.2  Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services,

2.3 Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products/ activities of the Group and the normal time between acquisition of assets and
their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the consolidated financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:
s  has power over the investee;
e s exposed, or has rights, to variable return from its involvement with the investee; and
e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

3.1.1 Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financiat statements have been prepared on the following basis:

(i) The consolidated financial statements of the subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn
upto the same reporting date as of the Company i.e. year ended March 31, 2018.

(ii) The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been
combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The intragroup balances and intra-group transactions and unrealised profits have been fully

% eliminated.



VE Commercial Vehicles Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements

3.1.2 The following subsidiary companies are considered in the consolidated financial statements:

3.2

33

Name of the subsidiary Company Country of Voting power Voting power
Incorporation held as at held as at
March 31,2018 | March 31,2017

V E C V Lanka (Private) Limited (VECV | Sri Lanka 100% 100%
Lanka)

VECV South Africa(Pty) Limited South Africa 100% 100%
(VECV South Africa)

Eicher Enginecering Solutions, Inc. (EES, | U.S.A, " =
Inc.) (Divested on March 18, 2017)
Eicher Engineering Solutions {Beijing) Co., | China - -
Ltd.

(100% subsidiary company of EES, Inc.)
(Divested on March 18, 2017)

Eicher Engineering Solutions (Shanghai) | China - -
Co., Ltd.

(100% subsidiary company of EES, Inc.)
(Divested on March 18, 2017)

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for rebates
and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when titles have passed and all the following conditions are
satisfied:

+ the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

» the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership
nor effective control over the goods sold;

» the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

+ it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

= the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract. Servicing fees included in the price of products sold are recognised by reference to the proportion of
the total cost of providing the servicing for the product sold

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on, time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

O
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VE Commercial Vehicles Limited 5
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements

The Group as a lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding is respect of the leases.

The Group as a Lessee

Rental expense from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight line basis over the term of relevant
lease. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increase, such increases are recognised in the year in which such
benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Group, transactions in currencies other than the Group's functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
cutrency are not retranslated

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise-

Foreign currency derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedging
relationship and the nature of the hedged item.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the' acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the peried in which they are incurred.
Government grants

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the
Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (3i) the grant/subsidy will be received.

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis in profit or loss
over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate.

Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts
over the expected useful life of the related asset and presented within other income.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit

Payments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Re-measurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected
immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period

%,
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VE Commercial Vehicles Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements

in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in
retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

» service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses or curtailments and
settlements),

* net interest expense or income; and
* re-measurement

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 'Employee
benefits expense'.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the
plans.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, in the period the
related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits such as annual leave and sick leave are
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect
of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Taxation
Tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years. Subject to exceptions below, deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all
deductible temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, on carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax loss;
deferred income tax is not recognised on the initial recognition (including MAT) of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely
than not that they will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or equity).

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at each reporting date
and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

%



VE Commercial Vehicles Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (including furniture, fixtures, vehicles, etc.) held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost of acquisition is inclusive of freight, duties,
taxes and other incidental expenses. Freehold land is not depreciated.

Propetties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes items directly attributable to the construction or acquisition of the
item of property, plant and equipment, and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with
the Company's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as-
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under
construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis at the straight line method over estimated economic useful lives of
its fixed assets generally in accordance with that provided in the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except
in respect of moulds and dies depreciated over the useful life of 1 to 15 years, wherein, the life of the said assets
has been assessed based on technical advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of
the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes,
manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc. and in respect of fixed assets of EES Inc. and its
subsidiaries on which depreciation is charged as per estimated useful life specified as under:

Type of assets Estimated useful life
Computer software 3 years
Office equipment 5 years
Furniture and fixtures T years
Plant and equipment 7 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if; all of the following have been demonstrated:
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VE Commercial Vehicles Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements

» the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset So that it will be available for use or sale
« the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

« the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

« how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

» the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the intangible asset; and

» the ability to measure reliably the expenditure atiributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent o initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Intangible assets comprising of product design, prototypes, etc., either acquired or internally developed are
amortised over a period of ten years, the estimated minimum useful life of the related products. Cost of software
is amortised over a period of 5 years or less depending on the estimated useful life of asset.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash- generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment foss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

KV
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3.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
moving weighted average. Finished goods and work-in-progress include appropriate proportion of overheads
and where applicable, excise duty. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

3.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is
material}.

Warranties

The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded when products are sold. These estimates are
established using historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims and
management estimates regarding possible future incidence based on corrective actions on product failures. The
timing of outflows will vary as and when warranty claim will arise.

3.14 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
atiributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or less are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.15 Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost {except for
debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

» the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

» the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition):

Vs
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« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and

» the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss for FVTOCI debt instruments.
All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, iransaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income" line
item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group irrevocably elects on initial
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity
instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria are measured at FVTPL. In
addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are designated as at
FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or foss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income' line
jtem. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be
measured reliably.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured
at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or
other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increase significantly since initial recognition.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Group
has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed
based on historical credit loss experience and adjustments for forward looking information.
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as' equity in
accordance with the substance of the coniractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities,

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL arec measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are
subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense
that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs’ Line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability.

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activitics of the Group are
segregated based on the available information.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ind AS 115 was notified on 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer.

The new revenue standard will supersede all curtent revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. This new
standard requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in
amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Adoption of the new rules could affect the timing of revenue recognition for certain transactions of
the Company. Ind AS 115 is effective for the Company in the first quarter of fiscal 2019 using either one of two
methods: (i) retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 Accounting

>
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Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, with the option to elect certain practical expedients as
defined within Ind AS 115 (the full retrospective method); or (ii) retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initially applying Ind AS 115 recognized at the date of initial application (1 April 2018) and providing certain
additional disclosures as defined in Ind AS 115 (the modified retrospective method).

The Company continues to evaluate the available transition methods and its contractual arrangements. The
ultimate impact on revenue resulting from the application of Ind AS 115 will be subject to assessments that are
dependent on many variables, including, but not limited to, the terms of the contractual arrangements and the
mix of business. The Company's considerations also include, but are not limited to, the comparability of its
financial statements and the comparability within its industry from application of the new standard to its
contractual arrangements. The Company has established an implementation team to implement Ind AS 115
related to the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers and it continues to evaluate the changes to
accounting system and processes, and additional disclosure requirements that may be necessary.

Upon adoption the Group does not expect a material change in the manner in which revenue arrangements are
recognized from the current practice. Based on the management’s assessment, the quantitative impact of Ind AS
115 on the financial statements is not material to the Group.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the management of the Group
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements that the management has made in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statemenis:-

Recoverability of intangible assets and intangible assets under development

During the year, the Group assessed the recoverability of the intangible assets and intangible assets under
development.

Capitalisation of cost in intangible assets and intangible assets under development is based on management’s
judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed and asset under development will generate
economic benefits in future. This situation is closely monitored, and adjustments made in future periods if future
market activity indicates that such adjustments are appropriate.

Recoverability of deferred tax assets including Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit

The Company has accumulated MAT Credit deferred tax asset which has arisen due to difference between
taxable profits and profits under section 115JB of the Income tax Act, 1961 which can be utilised up to 15 years
from the vear in which it arose. The management of the Company has done the analysis of future profit
projections and is confident that the future taxable income will be sufficient to utilise the MAT Credit
recognised in these financial statements.

Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of such obligation
are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are
reviewed at each reporting date.
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Provision and contingent liability

On an ongoing basis, Group reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies. For
contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial
statements. Loss Contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as Contingent
liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the
financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and
amounts are received or receivable,

Useful lives of tangible and intangible assets

Management reviews the useful lives of its tangible and intangible assets at each reporting. As at March 31,
2018 management assessed that the useful lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the Company.
Further, there is no significant change in the useful lives as compared to previous year.

b%/
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VE COMMERCIAL VEBICLES LIMITED 7
NOQTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. Investments
Rz in million

Agat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Investment in equity Instrumeats 0.5 0.5
0.8 Q.5
Non-current
Unquoted investment {at coat) in equity shares of:
‘Jolnt venture compuny*
25,000 (March 31, 2017 25,000) equity shares of Rs. 19 each fully paid up of - -
Bicher Company Foundation (Licetise under Section 8(1) of the Companiss
Act, 2013),
Unquoted investment {at FVTPL) In 3
Others
50,000 (March 31, 2017 50,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up of
Pithampur Auto Cluster Ltd 05 0.5
0.5 0.5

*Cost of investment is steted at Rs. Nil as the same cannot be distributed to the
members in the svent of liquidation, actual cost of investment of Rs. 250,000
hag been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the earlier years.

Rs. 10 milhon

Auat Asat
Muarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Apsregats book value of quated investments - -
Apgaregats carrying valus of unquoted investments (net of impairment, if any )- 0.5 05
Cutegory wiie other lnvesiments- a8 per IND AS 169 Classification
Asat Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Financial asseia carried at falr vaiue through profit er loss (FVTPL)
Investment in Pithempur Auto Cluster Lid. 0.5 0.5
14. Trade recelvables
s, i million
Particulars Ay at Asat
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Non-current
Unsecured - considered good 19.7 29.0
Totat 19.7 9.0
Current
Secured, considersd good - x0T 315
Unsecured - considered good 13,894.0 10,2646
- considered doubiful 1659 1314
R 14/090.6 10,427.5
Less: impairment for doubtful trade receivables 1659 1314
Total 13,9247 10,296.1
Age of receivables :
Rs. in million
Particulars At Asiet
: March 31,2018 Mareh 31, 2017
‘Within the credit period 10,128.8 83591.2
1-30 days past due 22503 1,019.6
31- 180 days past due 1393 672.5
More than 180 days past dus 3380 2332
- 14,1103 10,516.5

e
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11

12.

©

Loans
Re_inmillion
Asat As at
Farticulers March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Non - current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees 2.7 191
Total 21,7 19.1
Current
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees 152 56.9
Total 15.2 56.9
Note :- These financial assets are carried at amortised cost,
Other financial assets
Rs. inmillion
Partlcul Asat Asat
bl mieily March 31,2018 Mareh 31, 2017
Non - current
Unsecured, considered good
Fixed deposits* 200.1 2035
Security deposit 1442 1357
Taotal 3443 339.2
* Represenis fixed deposits pledged with banks agamst bank guarantees.
Current
Unsecured, considersed good unless otherwise statod
Security deposit
Considered good 3%.0 306
Considered doubadfil 1.5 15
46.5 381
Less: impairment for doubtful security deposits 15 125
350 306
aecrued on d 2968 1438
Industrial promotion subsidy reccivable 12982 8152
Other receivables F
Considered good 276 2552
Considered doubtful 39 39
2755 259.1
Less: impairment for doubtfial other receivables 39 39
2716 2552
Total 1905.6 12448

Nole :- These financigl nssets are carried at amortised cost.

N\
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13.

14.

15

16

2

Other assets
Rz in millicn
Particulars 408 Asat
March 31,2018 March 31,2017
Non - current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Capital advances 501.5 3193
Balance with government authorltles
Considered good 35T 3373
Considered doubtful 51 82.1
358.8 419.4
Less: impairment for doubtful advances 5.1 82.1
353.7 3373
Prepayment land leases 1136.8 963.2
Prepayment security deposits and other loans 40.6 384
Total 2032.6 1658.2
Cuorrent
Unsecured, congidered good unless otherwise stated
Advance to supplier T11.6 7265
Prepaid expense 593 545
Dalance with government nuthoritiea
Considered good 884.8 2,000.3
Considered doubiful 2.0 20
8868 20113
Less: impairment for doubtful advances 2.0 20
8843 2,0003
Advances to emplayees 8.8 44
Prepayment land leases 16.1 150
Prepayment security deposits and other loans 10.0 95
Total 1,690:6 2,8192
Inventory
Rs. inmillion
As at Asat
il L March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Raw materials and components 3,007.7 1,456.3
(includes goods in transit of Rs, 480.8 millicns (March 31,2017 Rs 176.5
millions)
Work in progress 493.1 429.7
Finished goods 3,884 3,143.9
(includes goods in transit of Rs. 176.61 millions (March 31, 2017 Rs. 109.0
millions)
Stock in trade 1,693.8 12236
{includes goods in transit of Rs.17.8 millions {Mearch 31, 2017 Rs 37.5 millions)
Stores and spares 2833 2608
Loess teals 127.7 1134
Taotal 9,489.9 6.627.7

The cost of Inventory recognized as sn expenses during the year was Rs. 74,919.0 million {previous year Rs. 70,229.9 million)

The cost of [nventeries recognized as an expenses includes Rs. 114.4 million (previcus year Rs. 2206 million) in tespect of write dewn of inventory to

net realizable value, and has been reduced by Rs. §.0 million (previous yeer Rs. 51 2 millions) in respect of reversal of such write downs.

Inventory of Rs. 286.6 million {March 31, 2017 Rs. 403.1 million} are expected to be recovered after more than 12 months.

The Mode of valuation of inventories has been stated in note 3.12,

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars Asat Asat
Murch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Cash on hand 11 1.1

Cheques, drafts on hand 346.7 1537

Balances with banks

Ih current accounts 454.4 180.8

In deposit accounts 2,650.0 27322

Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance sheset 3,452.2 3,107.8

Other bank balance

Partlculars Asat GIED

March 31,2018

March 31, 2017

Balances with banks
In depasit accounts

Q-

12,655.1

7473.2

12,655.1

74732
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17. Equily share capital

. in millions

As ut As ot
Pastkulare March 31, 2018 1, 2017
Authorlsed
10,000,000 (March 31, 2017 10.000,000) equitv shares of Rs. 10 oach 100.0 100.0
Taotal T 100.0
Issued. subseribed and pald up
10,000,000 (March 31, 2017 10,000,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 100.0 1.1
Total 1.0 1000

The Company hes only ouc class of cquily shercy having & par valug of Rg. 10 per share. Esch holder of equity shares is enlitled 1o one vole per shars held. In the event of liquidation,
the equity sharcholders are eligible to recsive Lhe remaining assels of the Company aller distribution of all prefereatial amound, in proportion Lo their sharehelding.

M Reconciliation of issue, subseribed and pald up eauity shares ;

Partlculars No. of Shares i
{Rs, inmillion}
Balance at March 31, 2006 10,000, 000 1
Movement during the year = .
Balance st March 31, 20£7 10,000,000 1M0.0
Movement during Lhe year - -
Balance at March 31, 2018 10,000,000 1000
)  Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Compan
As at March 31, 2018 Au ot March 31, 2017
Particulars [ % holding in the MNos. % bolding m the
cluss clage
Ercher Mators Limited 540,000 54.40% 3,440,000 S4.40%
Aktlebolaget Volvo (PUBL), Volvo, Sweden 3463,700 34,70% 3,469,700 34.70%
Volvo Truck Comiration, Sweden (100% subsidiary of Aklisholaget Volvo
PUBL). Volyo, Swedon) 1000300 1050% 1,650,300 e

Note:- Eichior Molors Limited and Aklicbolaget Volvo (PUBL), Volvs (including group ieg) ars in the Company.

o
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(2)
(b}
(c)
(d}

(a)

(&)

(©

Other equity
{Rs in millign)
As at As at
Particolars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Share premium account 10,786.6 10,786.6
General reserve 2,598.5 2,598.5
Retained eamings 18,942.2 15,3842
Foreign currency translation reserve 4.5 6.9
32,331.8 28,776.2
(Rg in million)
For the year ended For the year ended
Partlcalars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Share premium account
Opening balance 10,786.6 10,786.6
Add/ (less): movement during the year - 2
Closing balance 10,786.6 10,786.6

Share premium account represent the premium received on issuc of share capital of the company . The Company can utilised the same for the purpose of buy back of share or

issue of bonus shares as decided by the Management.

General reserve

Opening balance

Add: Transferred from Statement of profit and loss
Closing balance

2,5985

2,598.5

2,598.5

2,5985

The general reserve is used from time to timne to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve s created by a transfer from one
component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

Retained earnings

Opening balance

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Other comprehensive income;

from remeasurement of defined benefit obligation net of income tax
Less: Final dividend (amount per share Rs. 95.0 (previous year Rs. Nil}))

Less: Tax on dividend
Closing balance

15,384.2 11,936.0
4,716.2 3,4829
(14.8) (4.7)
950.0 .
193.4 >
18,942.2 153842

In respect of the year ended March 31, 2018, the directors proposed that a dividend of Rs. ... per share be paid on fully paid equity shares. This equity dividend is subject to
approval by shareholders at the annual general meeting and has not been included as a liability in these financial statements. The proposed equity dividend is payable to all
holders of fully paid equity shares, The total estimated equity dividend to be paid is Rs. ... Millions.

Foreign currency translation resetve

Opening balance 4 6.9 42
Add :- exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations (2.6) (17.3)
Less:- exchange fluctuation of subsidiary company transferred to exchange loss pursuant to divestment - 20.0
Closing balance 4.5 6.9

QD
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19. Other financial liabilitiea
Re i omilion
Azat As el
Particulars Mureli 31,2018 Mareh 31,2017
Non- Curvemt
Capital creditors - 330
Security deposits 64.2 6435
Total \!_ 64,2 075
Current
Capite! creditors 3848 468.3
-Book overdralt 1465.0 9289
Employees dues A0 %15
Total 2650.8 22122
20. Provisions
Ra in million
Asat A
Eagticulary Mareh 31,2018 March 31,2017
Non-curreat
Employees benefits ([}
Compensated dbsencos 4383 ny
Olher emploves benelils 338.1 2139
Other phevigions : Waranties (il) 8317 S94.4
Tatal 1608.1 1,246.2
Current
Ewployees benelis {i)
Compenaated shseaces 229 205
Other emplayes benelits 4.3 59
Other provisions : Warrsruties {ii) 8828 8321
Total 910 B5E 5

26

{i} The provition for emplayes benefits includes earnsd Ysave, siok loave, vesied loty service reward and oiher long-totmh Desatives, The inerewas in the camrying smount of the
prowisias for the current year resulls from increase in the number of employees, penod of service and salary cost.

{11} Movement in warraries provision R, bn million

For the year ended For the year ended

Y March 31. 2017

Operiing balence 14265 10304

Additional provisions recopnised 9203 976.2

Amcunt utitised during the year {6826} (623.1)

Unwinding of discount 503 436

Closimg balance 17145 14265
The provision for waranty claims rep 1he presout value of dhy 's bosl oetimate of the future eoonamic benefits that will be roquired under the C: /s obli

for warsntics under local ssle of goods logialation, The cetinuatod hus been made on the basis of hislorical warenty trends end mny vary lsuwullofnew;nuainh.-llnd
tienufacturing procecsea or othar svents affisoting product quality.

Deferred tax llnbifites (net)

s, i million
Asat Asal
Forsicuens March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Deferred tax lhabilitics on
Praperty, plant.and equi and i gblo wescls 39879 35162
Qthere d §3.7 414
4041 6 35576
Less: Doferrod Lax asscls on
MAT credit ontitlcment 3,160.9 3,098.1
Business losses and unabsorbed deprecistion carried forward 2.6 96
Accrued expenges deductible on paymtent §3.5 592
Pravision for leave h § d e 136.2 114.5
Pravision for doubtful debls and advances 62.1 50.1
Others 1941 1234
36164 343549
Deferred tax linbilitles (net) 428 102.7

N\
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24,

25,

\

Movement in Deferrcd tax liabilities

a

For the year ended March 31, 2018 R, in million
q it Recognised in profit and| Recognised in Gther a
Eeticiiary Opening loss comprehensive income Closing balnnce
Deferred tax linbilities on
Propertv. plant and equipment and intangible assels 35162 4717 39879
Others 414 1o 1 53
35576 827 13 AT
Less: Delerred tox assets on
MAT credit entiilement 30981 628 . 31609
Business losses and unabsorbed doprecietion carricd forward 9.6 - - 9.6
Accrued expenses deductible on pavment 592 (5.7 . 535
Provigion for lcave h /s d nk 1145 217 - 1362
Remcasurcmenl of defincd benefil abligation - (7.8) 78 -
Provisicn for doubtful debts end advances 501 120 - 621
Others 123.4 0.7 - 194 1
34548 153.7 18 361644
Delerred tax (assels) liabilities (net) 102.7 3190 (65) 4252
For the year months eaded March 31,2017 Rs i million
Particulars Opening balance Recopizediy problamd R“"’"’“’. L P“'" Closing balance
loss comprehensive income
Deferved tax liabilities on
Property. plait and equipment and intangible assels 34594 568 - 35062
Others 339 166 “n 414
ER VER] 734 (LA Y] 335576
Less: Deferred tax assets on
MAT credil entillement 29889 1092 - 3.0981
Business Iosscs and unabsorbed deprecintion carried forward 730 {63.4) - 26
Accrued expenses deductible on pavment 84.6 254) 592
Provision [or leave hmen/ d ab 633 212 1145
Remeasurement of defined benefit abligation - {1B.4) 184 -
Provision for doubltful debis and advances 532 A - 50.1
Others 55.1 G683 1234
33481 B4 154 34549
Deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities (net) 1432 {15.0) (27.5) 1027
Other liabilities
o As at Asat
Eardeulars reh 31, 2018 12017
Non- Currént
Advances from cuslomers 142 1232
Deferred revenue 320.5 2522
Total 334.7 3154
Current
Advanoes from cuslomers 1958.4 12453
Statulory dues 6023 6488
Deferred revenue N 344
Total 25954 1928.5
Borrowings
As at Asal
arficulars 31,2018 Marh 31,2017
Secured- at amortised cost
Loon repayeble on demand from banks
Short term loan (i) 3324 460.9
Unsecured- at amortised cost
Loan repavable on demend from banks
Short term loan (i) 2,255.0 15800
Total 25874 2.0400
(i) Rs. 310.0 million (March 31, 2017 :- Rs, 460.0 million) sccured by way of first peri passu hypothecation charge on all existing and fulure reccivables and curment psscls of the,
Company.
(ii) Unsecured loan carics inlerest @ 7.25 %- 7.G63 % per anum as al March 31,2018
Trade payables
. Asat Asal
Particulars 31,2018 Mar a17
Current
Acceplances 8,792.0 6,5294
Other rade pavables 17,843.8 12.886.0
Total 26,6358 19,415.4
Provision for tax {net of advance tox)
R in million
i As at As ot
Particulars Mareh 31,2018 March 312007
Provision for lax (nel of advence 1ax) 150.7 1951
Total 190.7 105.1
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26,

27.

a}
b)

<}

\

Revenue from operations

TP

Rs. in million

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31 2018

For the year ended
March 31 2017

Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Manufactured goods
Stock-in-trade

Sale of services

Other operating revenue

Export benefits

Scrap sales

Income from maintenance contracts
Provisions/liability no longer required written back
Provisions for doubtful debts writien back
Industrial promotion subsidy

Income from other operating revenues

Revenue from operations (net)

Sub-total (A)

Sub-total (B)

Total (A+B)

84,336.6 71,505.0
14,652.7 17,9133
370.0 672.3
99,359.3 90,090.6
726.3 549.4
293.2 2314
261.5 289.5
- 159.0
0.8 13.1
1,091.9 8118
560.4 476.0
2,874.1 2,530.2
102,233.4 92,620.8
Rs. in million

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particutars March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Details of products sold
Manufactured goods
Commercial vehicles 67,584.4 57,9855
Engines and related components 7,600.0 5,289.9
Spare parts and other components 9,152.2 8,229.6
Total 84,336.6 71,505.0
Stock-in-trade
Commercial vehicles 8,891.0 12,7252
Spare parts and other components 5,761.7 5.188.1
Total 14,652.7 17,913.3
Details of services rendered
Engineering services 30.5 386.1
Other allied services 339.5 286.2
Total 3700 672.3
Other income
Rs. in million
For the year ended For the year ended
LT March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost
- Deposit with bank 640.2 371.2
- Others 51.7 14.0
691.9 445.2
Other non-operating income
Service charges recovered 253 2715
Other miscellaneons income 1094 523
134.7 798
Other gains and losses
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - 40
Profit on divestment of subsidiary company - 431
- 47.1
Total §26.6 572.1
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28,

31

32

Cost of raw materials and componends consumed

(2

Rs. in million
= For the year ended For the year ended
g March 31 2018 Merch 312017
Inventory at the beginning of the year 1,456.3 12727
Add: purchases 66,948.6 49,727.1
68,404.9 50,999.8
Less: inventory at the end of the year 3,001.7 1,456.3
Less: material cost of vehicles capitalised 39.7 129.2
65,357.5 494143
1.es5: sale of raw materials and components to suppliers on cost to cost basis 2,074.8 909.3
Net consumption 63,282.7 48,505.0
Details of purchase of stock-in-trade
Rs, in million
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

March 31 2018

March 31 2017

Commercial vehicles 8,586.2 10,865.6
Spare parts and other components 4,655.4 4,161.7
Total 13,2416 15,027.3
Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
R, in millign
For the year ended For the year ended
e March 31 2018 March 312017
Tuventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 3,884.3 31439
Work-in-progress 493.1 4297
Stock-in-trade 1,693.8 1.223.6
6,071.2 4,797.2
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 3,1439 35908
Work-in-progress 429.7 4214
Stock-in-irade 1,223.6 128922
4,797.2 53014
Net change (B-A) (1,274.0) 5042
Employee benefits expenses
Rs. in million
R For the year ended For the year ended
LG T March 31 2018 March 312017
Salaries, wages, bonus ete. 6,136.1 58338
Contribution to provident and other funds 2028 193.4
Staff welfare expenses 546.3 4853
Total 6,885.2 6513.5
Finance costs
Rs. in million
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Interest expense
on borrowings 110.2 1359
on income tax 2.0 64
Unwinding of discount on provisions 50.3 436
Total 162.5 185.9

CV
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33. Depreciation and amoriisafion expenses
Rs. in million

E For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Depreciation of tangible assets * 2,510.0 21952
Amortisation of intangible assets 715.2 536.2

Total 3,225.2 27314

* Excludes Rs. Nil amount {previous year Rs, 1,2 million) transferred to capital work-in-progress.

34. Other expenses
Rs, in million

. For the year ended For the year ended
Ltse March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Stores and machinery spares consumed (including loose tools) 5135.6 434.0
Increasef(decrease) in excise duty on finished goods 2165.8 (66.5)
Lass on sale of property, plant and equipment 26.0 39.8
Praoperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets discarded 66.4 12.6
Power and fuel 7284 583.1
Insurance 13%.0 165.5
Repairs and maintenance
Buildings 168.5 159.2
Plant and equipment I61s 307.9
Others 3249 278.2
Rates and taxes 7.5 133.2
Advertisement 1529 191.0
Freight and handling charges 1,832.1 1489.0
Incentives 106.9 2927
Warranty 9203 977.1
Other selling and distribution expenses 8258 5824
Rent 3428 3479
Legal and professional charges # 182.4 1428
Travelling and conveyance expenses 499.6 501.0
Development and testing expenses 482.1 3305
Exchange loss 59.4 614
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 774 720
Brand fees 3925 316.6
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 46.6 87
Miscellaneous expenses 714.8 834.9
Tatal 9,303.2 8,195.0

# Including payment to auditors as below:-
Rs: in million

. For the year ended For the vear ended
Particulars March 31 2018 March 31 2017
a) As Statutory Audit
-Audit fee s 5.8
-Audit fees for foreign reporting 1.5 07
-Audit fees of accounts for fiscal year | -
-Limited Review of unaudited financial resuits 15 4.2
b} In other capacity:

- For transfer pricing report and other certification 0.6 27
¢) Out of pocket expenses 0.4 02

35. Income tax expense
Rs. in million

For the year ended For the year ended
Farticutars Mareh 31 2018 March 31 2017
Current tax 15188 971.2
Tax adjustment related to earlier years {712.8) -
Deferred tax charge/(benefit) 331.6 (15.0)
& Total Income tax recognlsed in the current year 1,777.6 956.2
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Inconte tax expense for the year can be recognised to the accounting profit as follows :
in

year
Partlculars March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Profit before tax 6,493.8 4,439.1
Income Tax expenses caloulated at 34.608% 2,2474 1.536.3
Effect of expenses that aré not deduetible in determining taxable profit 18.8 15.1
Effect of Additional deduction on reséarch and product development cost =~ . ' {351.9) (559.1)
Effect of Additional deduction for investment allowance undar Section 32 AC of the Income tax Act, 1961 - (48.9)
Others (136.7) 12.8
1,777.6 9562
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss 1,777.6 956.2
Income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive Income
year year

Particulars March 31 2018 March 31 2017
Deferred tax charge/ (benefit)
Arlsing on Income and expenses recogaised In other comprehensive income:

- Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation (7.8) {(18.4)

- Exchange differences in translating the financial statements of foreign operations
Tatal Income tax expense recognised in other compreherisive income
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised im other comprehensive income lnto:
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (7.8} (18.4)
ttems that may be reclassified to profit or loss (1.3} @1

% 9.1} - (27.5)
Q[
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36.

37,

38.

39,

A.

a)
b)
<)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. 1935.4 million (As at March 31 2017, Rs, 1404.4 million).
The Group has other commitments, for purchase/sales orders which are issued after considering requirements per operating cycle for purchase /sale of goods and services,
employee’s benefits including union agreement in normal course of business. The Group does not have any long term commitments or material non-cancellable cantractuzl
commilments/contracts, which might have material impact on the financial statements
Research and development expenses:
Revenue expenditure on research and development incurred and expensed off during the year through the appropriate heads of account aggregate Rs. 1687.5 million (Rs. 1,322.9
million). The capital expeaditure incurred during the year for research and development purposes agerepate Rs. 2225.8 million (Rs, 1363.1 million)
Contingent liabilities not provided for:
Rs. in_million
Pa’iculars Asat As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
a) In respect of followinp:
- Sales tax matters 1,758.7 £,905.3
- Excise duty matters 75.6 102.5
- Service tax matters 458.3 6103
- Incomne tax matters 0.5 05
b} Claims apainst the Group not acknowledged as debts 32.2 352
¢) Bills discounted - 200.6
All the abave matters other than bills discounted and guarantees given are subject to legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business. The legal proceedings when ultimately
concluded will not, in the opinion of management, have a material effect on the result of operations or the financial position of the Group
Disclosvres under Accounting Standard (Employee Benefits)
The details of various employee benefits provided to employees are as under:
Defined contribution plans Rs. in million
Particulars For the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Provident fiund * 1943 1854
Superannuation fund 15.9 16.3
Emplovee State Ingurance Corporation 16.7 118
* includes Rs 7.3 million (previous year Rs. 8.4 million) capitalized during the year/ period in intangible assets under development and includes nil amount (previous year Rs. 0.1
million) capitalised during the year/period under pre-operative expenditure pending allocation
Out of the total contribution made for employees’ provident fund, Rs. 68.% million {previous year Rs. 63.5 million) is made to Eicher Executive Provident Fund Trust, while the
remaining contribution is made to government administered provident fund.
The total plan liabilities under the Bicher Executive Provident Fund Trust as at March 31, 2018 is Rs.1896.3 million as against the total plan asseis of Rs. 1906.7 million, The
finds of the trust have been invested under various securities as prescribed under the rules of the trust.
Defined henefit plans:

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Group provides for gratuity, as defined benefit plan, The gratuity plan provides for a lumpswm payment to the
employees at the time of separation from the service on completion of vested year of employment i.e. five years, The liability of gratuity plan is provided based on actuarial
valuation as at the end of each financial year based on which the Group contributes the ascertained liability to Life Insurance Corporation of India by whom the plan assets are
maintained

These plans typically expose the Group to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, inherent rate risk , longevity risk and salary risk

Investment Risk The present value of ihe defmed benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian Rupee) is calculated

using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting

ncnnd on government bonds. Currently for the plan in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of]
i) in povermment securities, and other debt instruments.

Interest Risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability;, however, this will be partially

offset by an increase in the return on the plan's debt investments

Logevity Risk The present value of the defined benefit plan Liability is caloulated by reference to the best estimate of]
the mortality of plan parficipants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary Risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference ta the future salaries
of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's
liability. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in the actuarial valuation, take into
account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the
employmnent market.

%
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The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2018 by Mr. Mr.Charan Gupta,
Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit

method
Principal assumptions: Gratuity
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Discount rate 7.90% 1.50%
Future salary increase 71.50% 7.00%
Retirement age 58/60 years 58/60 years
Withdrawal rate 1-3% 1-3%
) ) IALM IALM
In service tmortality (2006-08) (2006.08)
*Based on India's standard mortality table with modification to reflect expected changes in mortality (please describe).
Amounis recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows :- Rs. in million
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Service cost
Current service cost 62.9 51.8
Past service cost and (pain)/Loss from settlements - ¥
Net Interest expenses 8.7 49
Component of defined henefit cost recognised in profit or less 71.6 62.7
Remensurement on the net defined henefit liahility:
Retumn on plan assets (excluding amounts imcluded in net inferest expense} 4 -
Actuarial {gains)/ losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions L
Actuarial {gains) lasses arising from changes in financial assumptions 6.7 -
Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from experience adjustments 15.9 531
Component of defined benefit cost recognised in Other comprehensive Income 22.6 53.1
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows : Rs. in million
Gratuity
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Present Value of funded defined benefit obligation 7327 666.6
Fair value of plan assets 732.7 656.6
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation - -
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows :-
Rs, in million
Particulars Gratuity
For the year ended Tor the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Present value of obligation as at the bepginning 6666 555.1
Current service cost 629 578
Interest cost 50.0 416
Benefits paid (72.7) {50.8)
Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognised 259 2.9
Present value of obligation as at the end 7327 £66.6
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of fund
Particulars Gratuity
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Present Value of fund as at the beginning 666.6 555.1
Tnterest income 41.3 367
Contribution 94,2 115.8
Net actuarial gain / (loss) recognised 33 98
Benefits paid ] (72.7) {50.8)
Present value of fund as at the end (@ 732.7 666.6

% @ Funds are managed by VECV Employees Group Gratuity Scheme (Trust).
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The Fair value of the plan assets af the end of veporting vear for each categary are as follows.

.f' “T\

)

Rs. in million

Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Corporate Bonds categorised by issuers' credit rating

AAA 102.3 1223

AA 16.2 22.7

A 14 -
Corporale debt bonds (traditional plan) 234,2 2224
Fixed deposits with banks = -
Government securities / Treasury Bills 3415 2432
Money Market 223 241
Others 838 319

Significant actuarial assumptions for the detennination of the defined obligation are discount rare, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been
detennined based on reasonable possible changes of the respective assumptions occurting at the end of the reporting year, while holding all other assumplions constant

- If the discount rate is 0.5 basis points higher {(lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease by Rs. 32.1 million (increase by Rs. 34.7 million )  as at March 31, 2017:

Decrease by Rs 28 .4 million (increase by Rs 30.7 million)),

- If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by 0.5 basis points, the defined benefit obligation would increase by Rs. 34.7 million (decrease by Rs. 32.4 million) { as at

March 31, 2017: increase by Rs 30.7 million (decrease by Rs 28.7 million)).

Sensilivities due to change in mortality rate and change in withdrawal rate are not material and hence impact of such change is not calculated.

Senstivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would

oceur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensilivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of
reporting period, which is same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
Asset-Linbility Matching Study

There is no (deficit)/Surplus of lability and funds, hence asset liability matching study not perfonmed.

Other disclosures

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

- As at As at
Al March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Average duration of the defined bemefit oblization (in years) 9 Years 9 Years
The estimated coniribution during next year is Rs. 77.8 million (previous year Rs. 72.9 million) to the defined benefit plan.

Earnings per share

Rs. in million
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
a) Profit afler taxation, per statement of profit and loss (Rs. in million) 4,716.2 38529
b) Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) 10,000,000 10,000,009

c) Earnings per share (in rupees):

(face value-Rs. 10 per share)

471,62 38520

= Basic and Diluied [{a)/{(b)]
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41,

41.1

41.2

413

Financial instruments

Capital Management

The Company managss its capital (o ensure that the Company will be able to continue as geing concern while maximising the retum 1o stakeholders through efficient allocation of capilal
towards expansien of business, opimisation of working capital requirements and deployment of surplus funds into various investment opticns, The Company does not have long-tenn debt
and uses the eperational cash flows and equity to meet its capital requirernents

The Comnpany is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements

The management of the Company reviews the capital structure of the Company on regular basis. As part of this review, the management of the Company considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with the movement in the working capital

The following table summarizes the capital of the Company:

Rs. in million
As at Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017
Share capital 140.0 100.0
Other equity 32.331.8 28.776 2
32.431.8 28.8762
Categories of financial instruments
Carrving value of the fi ial instr t5 mre a3 Toll
Rs_in million
As at Asal
March 31, 2118 March 31, 2017
Financial assets carried at fair value through profil and loss (FYTPL)
Investment in equity instruments 0.5 05
Financinal assets at ameortized cost
Now-currenl
Trade recervables 19.7 890
Loans 21.7 19.1
Other financial assels 3443 3392
Current
Trade receivables 13,924.7 10.2%6.1
Cash and cash equivalents 34522 3,107 8
Loans 15.2 569
Other financial assets 1,905,6 1,244 8
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Nom-current
Other financial liabilities 64.2 975
Currenl
Borrowines 2,587.4 2,040.0
Trade payables 26,6358 19,4154
Other financial liabilities 2.650.8 22122

Fair value measurements
This section provides additional information on balance sheet items that contain financial instruments:-

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the (air valunes

The following table categorise the financial instruments measured at fair value accompanied inte Level 1 1o Level 3, as described below

Level 1: This level includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted} in active markets for idenlical assets cr liabilities

Level 2: This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or liability, either directly
{ie, as prices} or indirectly (ie., derived from prices).

Level 3: This level includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unabservable inputs) Fair values are determined in whole or
in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same insin:ment nor are they based on available
market data

Fair value of the Company's (inancial assets that are measuved at fair value on a recurring basis:-
There are certain Cornpany's financial assets which are measured are fair value al the end of each reporting period. Following table gives informalion about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined:-

R, in million
Fair value as al
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Level 3 Level 3
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Non-cuerent
Investments in equity instruments 0.5 05

Fair value of the Company's financial assefs and linancial liabilities that are not measured at fnir value (but fair value disclosures are reanired)
The management censiders that the carmying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilliies recognised in the financial staterments approximate thir fair values

Notes:

Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other shert term receivables, trade payables, shori-termn borrowings, cther financial liabilities and other financial instruments
approximale their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term malurities of these instruments

Invesiment in fixed deposils are carried at amorlised cost and the fair value is estimated by discounting future cash flows using a discount rate equivalent to the rigk free retum, ad;justed for
the any expected credit loss allowance

The fair value for loans, security deposits which approximaies their carrying values were calculated on cash flows discounied using 2 current lending rate

Management uses its best judgment in estimating the fair value of its financial insiruments, However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique. Therefore, for substantially
all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of al! the amounts that the Company could have realized or paid in sale transactions as of
respective dales. As such, the fair value of the financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporiing dates may be different from the amounts reported at each year end

VD
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41.4 Financial risk management ohjectives and Policies

The Company's treasury function is managed by its Corporate Office Finance Depariment (COFD) which menitors and manages the financtal risks relating to the operations of the Company.
These risks include markel risk (including currency risk}, credit risk and liquidiry risk

The COFD evaluates and exercises independent contral over the entire process of market risk management. The treasury department recommends risk management objectives and policies,
which are approved by Senior Management. The activities of this dep includes of cash resources, implementing strategies for foreign currency exposures and ensuring
market risk limit and policies.

The Company does not enter into of trade financial instruments, including derivative fi

1ts, for speculative purp

Market risk
Market risk is the risk of any loss in future eamings, in realisable fair values or in future cash flows that may resuli from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The Company's
activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Markel risk exposures are measured using sensilivity analysis

Foreign currency risk management
The Company undertakes transaclions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency d inated y assets and tary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows

{in million)

As at March 31, 2018 As ol Mareh 31, 2017

Vorelgn currency exposure Trade Receivables Trade Payables Trade Receivables Trade Payables
usp 3.5 6.0 14.5 1.5
EURO 0.7 2.9 0.7 1.0
SEK. 0.0 6.7 - 54
Py - 1473 29 598
Dthers = 28.0 - 146

Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table details the Company's sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the Rs. against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivily rate used when reporting foreign

currency risk i Iy to key P 1 and rep 2t 's of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates, The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit or equity where the Rs  strengthens 5% againsi the rel y. Fora 3% kening of the Rs. against the relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact

on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be negative

(Rs. in million)
Currency As at March 31, 2018 As al March 31, 2017
£% increase 5% decreass 5% merease 5% deorease

Receivable
uspD {105.6) 20.5 _{55.3) 553
EURO .7 2.7 {2.5) 25
IPY - - (0.1} 0.1
Pavable
usb 15.5 {15.8) 49 4.9)
EURO 11.8 [14.5) 35 {3.5)
SEK 26 (2.6) 2.0 2.0)|
IPY 45 (4.5) 1.7 (1.7}
Others 4.0 (4,0) 1.7 (1.7}
Impact on profit or loss as at the end of the reporting (69.9) (7.9 {44.1) 44.1
period
Impact on total equity as al the end of the reporting (45.7) (11.7) {28.8) 268
period
In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk ¢ the exp at the end of the reporling period does not reflect the

exposure during the year/ in future years

Credil risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterpanty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopled a policy of enly dealing with
credilworlhy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults Credit exposure is controlled by counterpanty limits that are reviewed and approved by the
management of the Company

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of balance with banks, invest in fixed deposits, trade receivables, and other loans and
advances. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentrations of credit risks

Balances with banks were not past due or impaired as at the year end. In other financial assets that are not past dues and not impaired, there were no indication of default in repayment as at
the year end
The age analysis of trade receivables s of the balance sheet date have been considered from Lhe due date and disclosed in the note no. 10 above

The Company has vsed a practical expedient by computing the expected loss all for fi ial assets based on hislorical credil loss experience and adjusimenis for forward looking
information
Muvement in the expected evedit loss allownnce of financial assets Rs. in million
For the year ended For the year ended March
Mareh 31, 2018 21,2017
Balance at beginning of the vear 142.8 151.7
Add: Provided during the vear 46.6 82
Less: reversals of pravision (0.8) {13.1}
Less: amounts wrilten ofl (11.3) (4.0)
Balance at end of the year 177.3 142 8

Q-
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The abave does not in¢lude provision for diminution in the value of investment in subsidiary company,

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk represents the inabil ity of the Company 10 meet its financial obligations within stipulated time.

Maturity profile of flnancial liabltites:
The table below pravides details regarding the remainIng contractual maturitles of financlal Habliitles at the reporting date.

Re in million

As at March 31, 2013

Partlculars
Less than 1 Yonrs year Maore than
1 year 5 years

Total

Non-current

(i) Other financl labilities - - 64.2 64.2

Current
(i} Borrowings 2.587.4 = - 2,547.4
(it} Trade payables 26,635.8 - - 26,6358
(ii1) Other financial Habilities 2,650.8 - - 2,650.8

Bs_inmillion

Aeat March 31, 2017

Particulars Less than | Year-§ More than
1 year year Syears

Total

Non-current

(1) Other financimal liabilities - 33.0 645

Current
(1)} Borfowings 2.040,0 - - 2.040.0
{ii) Trade payables 194154 - - 104154
(g} Other financial liabilities 22122 - - 22122

The surplus funds with the Company and operational cash flows will be sufficient io dispose the financial liabilities with in the maturity period.

A\
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42, Segment Reporting Disclosure

The Group primarily operates in the automative segment The automotive segment includes all activities related to development, design, manufacture, assembly and

sale of commercial vehicles, as well as sale of related parts and accessories

The board of directors of the Company, which has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Group's performance, allocate
resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicater of the Group as a single unit. Therefore, there is no reportable segment for the Group as per the

requirement of IND AS 108 “Operating Segments™.

Geographical information

The "Geographical Segments” comprises of domestic segment which includes sales to customers located in India and the overseas segment includes sales

to customers located outside India.

Domestic Overseas
Revenue from operations
For the year ended March 31, 2018 85.519.9 16.713.5
For the vear ended March 31, 2017 78.864.2 13.756.5

a) Domestic segment includes sales and services to customers located in India.
b) Overseas segment includes sales and services rendered to customers located outside India.
c) There are no material non-curreht assets located outside India.

Total

102.233.4
92.620.8

d) The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for the Group Revenue have been identified to

segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Information about major customers
% No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue.

Q
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43, Relnted party disclosures under Ind AS 24
" Related party disclosares

(i} Trvestor In respect of which the Company is a eint vesture
Eicher Motors Limited {EML)
Akticbolaget Volvo (FUBL), Volvo. Swedea {AB Volvo)

Ty Jolnt venture company
Eicher Group Foundation (EGF}

(i) Enfity under the control of co-venturer (AB Volvo)
Volve do Brasil Velculos Lida
Renaull Trucks SAS

UD Truck Comoration

Volve Group India Private Lid
Volvo Lastvognar AB

Volve Powerimin Compoeration
Velvo Busswr AB

AB Yolve Penla

Volvo Information Technelogy AB
Volvo Logislics AB

Volvo Busineas Services AB
Velvo Peris AB

Volve Construction Bauipraent AB
Thai Swediali Assembly

Volvo Trwk Corperstion

Volvo Merchniidise AB

Volvo Bus Corporation

Velvo East Asia (Ple) Lid

PT Velvo Asis

Ud Trucks Southern Affica (Ptv) Lid.
Volvo Groun Middlc Eest FZE
BT. VOLVYC INDONESIA
Retault Tracka Gare V1

{iv) Entity under the Jaint control of co-veaturer (EML)
Eicher Polaris Private Limited (BPPL}

{¥) Entity under the control of key management personnel and thelr relatives
Eicher Goodearth Privete Limitod {EGFL)

{vi) Other velated narties

Eicher Bxscutive Provident Fund Post suolovment beoselit tlea
Eicher Tractors Executive Stall Superanmation Fund Post emplovment benefit plan
‘WECY Emplovess Group Graluity Scheme Post ermnlovment bensfit plan

{vil) Key management personnel

Vinod Aggarwal Managing dirorier {w.f. Qclober 26, 2016), Chief Exocutive Officer
Siddhartha Lal Drirclor. Cheimaan fuplo Mav 2, 2007

Hakan Karlsson Chairmen fwef, Mav 3. 2007}

Jacaues Michel Direclor {w.e.f. October 26, 2016)

Philippe Divry Dirsctor

Raul Rai Direcior ~ *

Prateek Jalan Indepeiider Director

Lils Poorawalla Independent Direcior

Anders Hager Clhvicl Financial Officer fw.e £ Docomber 1, 2017
Praveen Kumar Jain Comuany Secrotery

L
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b.  Transactions with the sbave parties
R m million
Nume of related party s For the year ended For the year ended
Muture of transaction ols Match 3. 2017
(i} Investor in respect of which the Comipany is & joint venture
Eicher Motors Limited Salc of finished oodsiservices 19889 1,457.4
Corporale service chamees recoversd 285 26.0
Dividend paid 5164 -
Tooling advance received 8 -
Expenses recovered 3l 43
Others 32 -
Akticholapet Volvo {PUBL), Volvo, Sweden Dividend paid 4332 =
{iii’ Joint venture company
‘Eicher Group Foundation Conlrib for [ ibility 698 56.7
{iii) Entity under the cantrol of co-venturer (AB Volvo}
Volva do Brasil Veieulos Lida Sale of finiched goods / services 117 73
Remault Trucks SAS Sale of finished goods / eervices 32688 3,100.7
Expenses recovoned 34 0.8
Expenses reimbursod - 19.6
Purchese of goods / services 938 21,3
Purchase of capital goods/icrvices %76 637
Others 1253 -
UD Truck Corp Sale of finished goods / services ns 2368
Expenses reinbursed 185 87
Purchese of goods 7 pervioss 73 10.9
Purchase of capital goods/services 0.6 44
Volvo Group India Privale Lid Salc of fmished goods/ servioes A4 2108
Expenses reooverad 6443 6.7
Expenses reimbursed 32 629
Purchase of goods/scrvices 14.7904 14,2423
Punchase of capilal poodsficrvices 349 714
Qthers - 03
Volvo Powerinain Carporation Sale of finished goods/ services 16.1 -
Variance paid - 535
Expemses néoovered - 5.6
Others 118 72
AB Volvo Penta Sabs of finished goods/ servicss 12 12
Volvo Information Technology AB Purchase of goods / services 249 1.3
Purchase of capilal poods/scrvices - -
Volvo Logislics AB Experses recavered e 34
Purchese of moods / services 11
Others - 01
Volvo Paris AR Sale of finished goods / servioss 03 03
Volvo Construction Equipncnt AB Salc of finished geods / scrvices 14 01
‘Thai Swedish Assembly Sele of finished goods / servives 09 04
Exponscs rocovered - -
Volvo Truck Corporalion Sale of finished goods / scrvices 246602 14053
Expenses recovernd 1765 3347
Expenses reumbumsed - 07
Purchese of goods / scrvices 621 439
Purchage of gapilal poods/séryices 663 46.1
Others 457 171
UD Trucks Southern Afirica {Pty.) Limited Sale of finished goods/ sevvices = =
Volvo Group Middle East FZE Sale of linished goods/ scrvices - 0.4
Expenses recovered - ol
Renaull Trucks Gare VI Sale of finiched poods/ services 190 07
Volvo Bus Corporation Sale of finished poods / sorvices 153.2 -
Exnenses recovered 853 2047
Volvo East Asia (PTE} d, Selc of Rinished goods/ gervices a1 01
Volvo Paris Comporalion PBurchase of goods / services 16.4 126
Renault Trucks Purchase of goods / services 124.6 -
PT Volvo indanesia Purchase of goods / services 23
{iv} Entity under the foint control of co-venturer (EML)
Eicher Polariz Privals Limiled Sale of finished goods/ services 45 136
Comorale service charges recovered 1.2 15
Tocling advencs received 01 G4
Others 04 07
{v} Entitv under the conirol of key management personnel
Eicher Goodsarth Privale Limited Expentses recovered = .
Loase rent 89 195
Brand fee 1222 99.0
Othess s 316.6
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Re_in million

Wame of velnted party

Nature of transaction

For the yeur ended

For the year eided

March 31. 2018 March 31, 2017
vi) Other related parties
Eicher Bxecutive Providend Fund Contribution made 689 533
Eicher Traclors Execulive Stalf Supcrannuation Fund Contribulion made (58 158
VECY Emplovees Group Gratuity Scheme Contribution made to fund 942 115.8
Beneliis prid through fund 7.7 508
{vil) Key management personnel
Vinod Aggarwal Shari- lerm benefils 510 4.0
Posl- employment benefils 19 23
Other long- lerm benafits 0.0 04
50,0 416
Gilles Boutte Short-tem benefi 14.5 274
Anders Hager Shori-temm benelits a8 -
Pravesn Kumar Jain Short- lerm benelits 50 a7
Post- employvmen) benefits 0.1 0.1
Other long- lerm benefits 0.4 .01
52 £
Prateck Jalan Silling e 14 09
Lila Poonawalla Sitting fecs 14 07
Balance autstanding at the year end
R i milion
Name of related party Nature As at As al
March 31,2018 March 21,2017
{i) [nvestor in respect of which the Company is a ioint venture
Bicher Motors Limied - Receivables 456,1 326.8
= Advance from customer 04 -
Alktisbolagel Volva (PUBL), Volvo, Sweden - Pavables - -
¢ii} Entitv under the control of co-venturer {AB Volvol
Volvo do Bresil Veiculos Lida - Rectivables 4.3 36
Renalt Trucks SAS = Receivables 108 3%3.2
~Other linencial assois N N
- Payablez 3151 162
D Truck Comp - Reccivablos 4.2 6.7
= Payables 64 64
Volvo Group India Privatc Lid - Reoeivablos 79 56.3
~Other financial assels - £5.5
- Payables 1053 1,7985
Volvo Powecrtrain Corporsticn - Recsivebles 19 5.6
<Other finanoial asscis - -
= Pavables 1.8 1151
AB Volve Penta = Receivebles 0.1 -
Volvo Informalion Technology AB - Payablez 14 144
Valvo Logisties AB -Payables 13 0.0
Velvo Parts AB - Receivables (%] 02
Volva Consiruction Equipment AR - Reccivables a -
= Payabks 5 =
Thai Swedish Assembly - Reeeivables 04 02
‘Velvo Trucks Corporation - Receivables 08.4 2586
~Other financial assets - -
- Payables 3.0 273
UD Trucks Southern Africa (Pry} Lad. - Pavablos 5 5
Valvo Group Middle East FZE - Reczivablea 5 04 7~
Renault Trucks Gare V1 - Reccivables 03 o7
Volva Bus Corpomlion - Recaivables 61,7 36.8
Volvo Bus Indin Privale Limited - Retzivables - -
-Other finencial asscls Z z
Volvo Merchandise AD = Receivables 2 -
Volvo Paris Corporation - Pavables . 1.0
Renault Trucks - Receivables 38 -
{iii7 Entity under the foint contro! of co-venturer (EML)
Eicher Polaris Private Limiled - Reccivables 1.9 21
- Advances from Cuslomers . 0l
{iv) Enlity under the control of key management perecnnel
Eicher Goodearth Private Limiled - Pavables 26.9 306.6
- Security Deposil Reccivable a1 35.1

Notes to the related party transactions

OuMinnbM?uMMMudmmmmwuanmminm
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44. Disclosure in respect of [eases
(A) Operating lease
The Company has taken certain promiscs under various operating lease agreements. The total lease rental recognizs as expense aggregate to Rs, 325 8 million (previous year Rs. 347.9 million).

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in the agprepate and for each of the following periods:
Rs. in million

Particulary As at Asat

March 31, 2018 Mirch 31, 2017
Not later than one year 42.7 73.6
Later than one year and not later than five years 46.4 44.6
Later than five years 0.9 s

(B) Finance lease
The Group has entered into finance lease ananpements for certain vehicles, Future minimum lease payments and reconciliation of gross mvestment in the lease and present value of minimum lease

payments are as under:
Rg in million

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Future minimum lease payments

- not later than one year 78.5 2333
- later than one year and not later than five years 19.7 982
Less: future finance charges 9.2 355

Present value of minimum lease payments receivable
- not later than one year .3 2070
- Iater than one year and not later than five years 163 86.0
- later than five years o =
Unguaranteed residual value -
Accumulated provision for uncollectible minimum lease payments receivable = =

Contingent rent recognised in Statement of Profit or loss during the year - %

45, Additional information as required by Paragraph 2 of the General Instructions for preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements to Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013

Name of the enfity in the Share of net assets Share of profit or loss
As % of Rs. In million As % of Rs. In million
consolidated net assets consolidated profit or loss
Parent
VE Commercial Vehicles Limited 99,76% 32.353.8 100.3% 4,730,0
Subsidiaries
Fareign
1. VECV South Africa (Piy) Limited 0.05% 17.0 £0.7% (32.8)
2. V E C V Lanka (Private) Limited 0.19% 60.9 0.4% 19.1
100.0% 32,431.8 100.0% 4.716.2
Name of the entity in the Share of other comprehensive i Share of total comprelicnsive income
As % of Rs. In million As % of Rs. In million
consolidated ather consolidated tonl
comprehensive incomme comprehensive income
Parent
VE Commercial Vehicles Limited 35,7% (14.9 100.3% 47150
Subsidiaries
Foreign
1. VECV South Africa (Pty) Limited 14.3% {1.5} -1.8% (35.3)
2.V ECV Lanka (Private) Limited 0.0% - 0.4% 19.1
100L0% (17.4) 99.6% 4,698.8

46,  As per Madhya Pradesh (M.P.) Investment Promation Scheme 2014, the Company is eligible for State Government incentives in the form of reimbursement of 75% of Value added 1ax {VAT) paid
after adjusting input tax rebate on VAT/ CST.
Post GST implementation effective July 1, 2017, the VAT / CST Acts have been repealed but as the aforesaid Scheine has not been withdrawn by the MP Government, the benefits therein continue.
Furthet, the State Government has assured the Company that a notification on revised criteria for the calculation of incentive under GST regime shall be announced socon and the incentive under GST
regime should be inore gr less at par with incentives under VAT regime. The management has also obtained a legal opinion confirming that as on date the State Government policy on incentives has
not been withdrawn and hence the Company continues to be cligible for these incentives. Accordingly, the Company has accrued the incentives amounting to Rs.774 million in these financial
statements past G8T implementation.

\4?. The Campany and it's subsidiarics did not have any long-tenn contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
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48, There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company and it's subsidieries.

49, Previous year's figures have been recast/regrouped whenever necessary to conform to the current year presentation.
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